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Certain Defined Terms

Except as the context may otherwise require in this report, references to:

• “we,” “us,” “our” and the “Company” are to SYNCHRONY FINANCIAL and its subsidiaries;

• “Synchrony” are to SYNCHRONY FINANCIAL only;

• the “Bank” are to Synchrony Bank (a subsidiary of Synchrony);

• the “Board of Directors” or “Board” are to Synchrony's board of directors;

• “CECL” are to the impairment model known as the Current Expected Credit Loss model, which is based on expected credit losses; and

• “VantageScore” are to a credit score developed by the three major credit reporting agencies which is used as a means of evaluating the likelihood that
credit users will pay their obligations.

We provide a range of credit products through programs we have established with a diverse group of national and regional retailers, local merchants,
manufacturers, buying groups, industry associations and healthcare service providers, which, in our business and in this report, we refer to as our “partners.”
The terms of the programs all require cooperative efforts between us and our partners of varying natures and degrees to establish and operate the programs.
Our use of the term “partners” to refer to these entities is not intended to, and does not, describe our legal relationship with them, imply that a legal partnership
or other relationship exists between the parties or create any legal partnership or other relationship.

Unless otherwise indicated, references to “loan receivables” do not include loan receivables held for sale.

For a description of certain other terms we use, including “active account” and “purchase volume,” see the notes to “Management’s Discussion and Analysis—
Results of Operations—Other Financial and Statistical Data” in our Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 (our “2024 Form 10-
K”). There is no standard industry definition for many of these terms, and other companies may define them differently than we do.

“Synchrony” and its logos and other trademarks referred to in this report, including CareCredit®, Quickscreen®, Dual Card™, Synchrony Car Care™ and
SyPI™, belong to us. Solely for convenience, we refer to our trademarks in this report without the ™ and ® symbols, but such references are not intended to
indicate that we will not assert, to the fullest extent under applicable law, our rights to our trademarks. Other service marks, trademarks and trade names
referred to in this report are the property of their respective owners.

On our website at https://investors.synchrony.com, we make available under the "Filings & Regulatory-SEC Filings" menu selection, free of charge, our Annual
Reports on Form 10-K, Quarterly Reports on Form 10-Q, Current Reports on Form 8-K and amendments to these reports filed or furnished pursuant to Section
13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the "Exchange Act") as soon as reasonably practicable after such reports or amendments
are electronically filed with, or furnished to, the SEC. The SEC maintains an Internet site at www.sec.gov that contains reports, proxy and information
statements, and other information that we file electronically with the SEC.
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Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements:

Various statements in this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q may contain “forward-looking statements” as defined in Section 27A of the Securities Act of 1933, as
amended, and Section 21E of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the “Exchange Act”), which are subject to the “safe harbor” created by those
sections. Forward-looking statements may be identified by words such as “expects,” “intends,” “anticipates,” “plans,” “believes,” “seeks,” “targets,” “outlook,”
“estimates,” “will,” “should,” “may,” “aim,” “focus,” “confident,” “trajectory,” “priorities,” “designed,” “consider” or words of similar meaning, but these words are not
the exclusive means of identifying forward-looking statements.

Forward-looking statements are based on management’s current expectations and assumptions, and are subject to inherent uncertainties, risks and changes in
circumstances that are difficult to predict. As a result, actual results could differ materially from those indicated in these forward-looking statements. Factors that
could cause actual results to differ materially include global political, economic, business, competitive, market, regulatory and other factors and risks, such as:
the impact of macroeconomic conditions, including factors impacting consumer confidence and economic growth in the United States, such as inflation, interest
rates, tariffs (including retaliatory tariffs) and an economic downturn or recession, and whether industry trends we have identified develop as anticipated; the
impact of changes in the U.S. presidential administration and Congress on fiscal, monetary and regulatory policy; the impact of the federal government
shutdown that began in October 2025; retaining existing partners and attracting new partners, concentration of our revenue in a small number of partners, and
promotion and support of our products by our partners; cyber-attacks or other security incidents or breaches; disruptions in the operations of our and our
outsourced partners' computer systems and data centers; the financial performance of our partners; product, pricing and policy changes related to the
Consumer Financial Protection Bureau’s (the “CFPB”) final rule on credit card late fees, which was vacated in April 2025; the sufficiency of our allowance for
credit losses and the accuracy of the assumptions or estimates used in preparing our financial statements, including those related to the CECL accounting
guidance; higher borrowing costs and adverse financial market conditions impacting our funding and liquidity, and any reduction in our credit ratings; our ability
to grow our deposits in the future; damage to our reputation; our ability to securitize our loan receivables, occurrence of an early amortization of our
securitization facilities, loss of the right to service or subservice our securitized loan receivables, and lower payment rates on our securitized loan receivables;
changes in market interest rates; effectiveness of our risk management processes and procedures, reliance on models which may be inaccurate or
misinterpreted, and our ability to manage our credit risk; our ability to offset increases in our costs in retailer share arrangements; competition in the consumer
finance industry; our concentration in the U.S. consumer credit market and susceptibility to market fluctuations and legislative and regulatory developments; our
ability to successfully develop and commercialize new or enhanced products and services; our ability to realize the value of acquisitions, dispositions and
strategic investments; reductions in interchange fees; fraudulent activity; failure of third-parties to provide various services that are important to our operations;
international risks and compliance and regulatory risks and costs associated with international operations; alleged infringement of intellectual property rights of
others and our ability to protect our intellectual property; litigation, regulatory actions and compliance issues; our ability to attract, retain and motivate key
officers and employees; tax legislation initiatives or challenges to our tax positions and/or interpretations, and state sales tax rules and regulations; regulation,
supervision, examination and enforcement of our business by governmental authorities, the impact of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and Consumer
Protection Act (the “Dodd-Frank Act”) and other legislative and regulatory developments and the impact of the CFPB's regulation of our business, including new
requirements and constraints that Synchrony and the Bank are or will become subject to as a result of having $100 billion or more in total assets; impact of
capital adequacy rules and liquidity requirements; restrictions that limit our ability to pay dividends and repurchase our common stock, and restrictions that limit
the Bank’s ability to pay dividends to us; regulations relating to privacy, information security and data protection; use of third-party vendors and ongoing third-
party business relationships; and failure to comply with anti-money laundering and anti-terrorism financing laws.

For the reasons described above, we caution you against relying on any forward-looking statements, which should also be read in conjunction with the other
cautionary statements that are included elsewhere in this report and in our public filings, including under the heading “Risk Factors Relating to Our Business”
and “Risk Factors Relating to Regulation” in our 2024 Form 10-K. You should not consider any list of such factors to be an exhaustive statement of all of the
risks, uncertainties, or potentially inaccurate assumptions that could cause our current expectations or beliefs to change. Further, any forward-looking
statement, including under the heading "Business Trends and Conditions" below, speaks only as of the date on which it is made, and we undertake no
obligation to update or revise any forward-looking statement to reflect events or circumstances after the date on which the statement is made or to reflect the
occurrence of unanticipated events, except as otherwise may be required by law.
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PART I. FINANCIAL INFORMATION

ITEM 2. MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS OF FINANCIAL CONDITION AND
RESULTS OF OPERATIONS
The following discussion and analysis of our financial condition and results of operations should be read in conjunction with our condensed consolidated
financial statements and related notes included elsewhere in this quarterly report and in our 2024 Form 10-K. The discussion below contains forward-looking
statements that are based upon current expectations and are subject to uncertainty and changes in circumstances. Actual results may differ materially from
these expectations. See “Cautionary Note Regarding Forward-Looking Statements.”

Introduction and Business Overview
____________________________________________________________________________________________

We are a premier consumer financial services company delivering one of the industry's most complete digitally-enabled product suites. Our experience,
expertise and scale encompass a broad spectrum of industries including digital, health and wellness, retail, telecommunications, home, auto, outdoor, pet and
more. We have an established and diverse group of national and regional retailers, local merchants, manufacturers, buying groups, industry associations and
healthcare service providers, which we refer to as our “partners.” For the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, we financed $46.0 billion and
$132.8 billion of purchase volume, respectively, and had 68.3 million and 68.7 million average active accounts, respectively, and at September 30, 2025, we
had $100.2 billion of loan receivables.

We offer our credit products primarily through our wholly-owned subsidiary, the Bank. In addition, through the Bank, we offer, directly to retail, affinity
relationships and commercial customers, a range of deposit products insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”), including certificates of
deposit, individual retirement accounts (“IRAs”), money market accounts, savings accounts and sweep and affinity deposits. We also take deposits at the Bank
through third-party firms that offer our FDIC-insured deposit products to their customers. Our deposit base has continued to serve as a source of stable and
diversified low-cost funding for our credit activities. At September 30, 2025, we had $79.9 billion in deposits, which represented 85% of our total funding
sources.

Our Sales Platforms
____________________________________________________________________________________________

We conduct our operations through a single business segment. Profitability and expenses, including funding costs, credit losses and operating expenses, are
managed for the business as a whole. Substantially all of our revenue generating activities are within the United States and are aligned through five sales
platforms (Home & Auto, Digital, Diversified & Value, Health & Wellness and Lifestyle). Those platforms are organized by the types of partners we work with,
and are measured on interest and fees on loans, loan receivables, active accounts and other sales metrics.
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Home & Auto

Our Home & Auto sales platform provides comprehensive payments and financing solutions with integrated in-store and digital experiences through a broad
network of partners and merchants providing home and automotive merchandise and services, as well as our Synchrony Car Care network and Synchrony
HOME credit card offering. In March 2024, we completed our acquisition of Ally Financial Inc.'s point-of-sale financing business ("Ally Lending"), which
deepened our presence in the home improvement sector, including specialty areas such as roofing, HVAC and windows. Our Home & Auto sales platform
partners include a wide range of key retailers in the home improvement, furniture, bedding, flooring, appliance and electronics industry, such as Ashley
HomeStores, Inc., Floor & Decor, Lowe's, and Mattress Firm, as well as automotive merchandise and services, such as Chevron and Discount Tire. In addition,
we also have program agreements with manufacturers, buying groups and industry associations, such as Generac, Nationwide Marketing Group and the Home
Furnishings Association.

Digital

Our Digital sales platform provides comprehensive payments and financing solutions with integrated digital experiences through partners and merchants who
primarily engage with their consumers through digital channels. Our Digital sales platform includes key partners delivering digital payment solutions, such as
PayPal, including our Venmo program, online marketplaces, such as Amazon and eBay, and digital-first brands and merchants, such as the Qurate brands,
Verizon, and Virgin Red.

Diversified & Value

Our Diversified & Value sales platform provides comprehensive payments and financing solutions with integrated in-store and digital experiences through large
retail partners who deliver everyday value to consumers shopping for daily needs or important life moments. Our Diversified & Value sales platform is
comprised of six large retail partners: Belk, Fleet Farm, JCPenney, Sam's Club, TJX Companies, Inc. and Walmart.

Health & Wellness

Our Health & Wellness sales platform provides comprehensive healthcare payments and financing solutions, through a network of providers and retail
locations, for those seeking health and wellness care for themselves, their families and their pets, and includes our CareCredit brand, as well as partners such
as Walgreens.

Lifestyle

Our Lifestyle sales platform provides comprehensive payments and financing solutions with integrated in-store and digital experiences through partners and
merchants who offer merchandise in power sports, outdoor power equipment, and other industries such as sporting goods, apparel, jewelry and music. Our
Lifestyle sales platform partners include a wide range of key retailers in the apparel, specialty retail, outdoor, music and luxury industry, such as American
Eagle, Dick's Sporting Goods, Guitar Center, Kawasaki, Pandora, Polaris, Suzuki and Sweetwater.

Corp, Other

Corp, Other includes activity and balances related to certain program agreements with retail partners and merchants that will not be renewed beyond their
current expiration date and certain programs that were previously terminated, which are not managed within the five sales platforms discussed above. Corp,
Other also includes amounts related to changes in the fair value of equity investments and realized gains or losses associated with the sale of businesses and
investments.
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Our Credit Products
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Through our sales platforms, we offer three principal types of credit products: credit cards, commercial credit products and consumer installment loans. We also
offer our Payment Security program, which is a debt cancellation product.

The following table sets forth each credit product by type and indicates the percentage of our total loan receivables that are under standard terms only or
pursuant to a promotional financing offer at September 30, 2025.

Promotional Offer
Credit Product Standard Terms Only Deferred Interest Other Promotional Total
Credit cards 61.7 % 18.1 % 12.6 % 92.4 %
Commercial credit products 1.9  —  —  1.9 
Consumer installment loans —  0.2  5.4  5.6 
Other 0.1  —  —  0.1 
Total 63.7 % 18.3 % 18.0 % 100.0 %

Credit Cards

We offer the following principal types of credit cards:

• Private Label Credit Cards. Private label credit cards are partner-branded credit cards (e.g., Lowe’s or Amazon) or program-branded credit cards
(e.g., Synchrony Car Care or CareCredit) that are used primarily for the purchase of goods and services from the partner or within the program
network. In addition, in some cases, cardholders may be permitted to access their credit card accounts for cash advances. Credit under our private
label credit cards typically is extended either on standard terms only or pursuant to a promotional financing offer.

• Dual Cards and General Purpose Co-Branded Cards. Our patented Dual Cards are credit cards that function as private label credit cards when
used to purchase goods and services from our partners, and as general purpose credit cards when used to make purchases from other retailers
wherever cards from those card networks are accepted or for cash advance transactions. We also offer general purpose co-branded credit cards
that do not function as private label credit cards, as well as a Synchrony-branded general purpose credit card. Dual Cards and general purpose co-
branded credit cards are offered across all of our sales platforms and credit is typically extended on standard terms only. We offer either Dual Cards
or general purpose co-branded credit cards through over 15 of our large partners, of which the majority are Dual Cards, as well as our CareCredit
Dual Card. Consumer Dual Cards and co-branded cards totaled 31% of our total loan receivables portfolio at September 30, 2025.

Commercial Credit Products

We offer private label cards and Dual Cards for commercial customers that are similar to our consumer offerings. We also offer a commercial pay-in-full
accounts receivable product to a wide range of business customers.

Installment Loans

We originate secured installment loans to consumers (and a limited number of commercial customers) in the United States, primarily for power products in our
Outdoor market (motorcycles, ATVs and lawn and garden). We also offer unsecured installment loans primarily in our Home & Auto and Health & Wellness
sales platforms and through our various other installment products, such as our Synchrony Pay Later solutions, including pay monthly and Pay in 4 products,
for short-term loans. Installment loans are closed-end credit accounts where the customer pays down the outstanding balance in installments. Installment loans
are generally assessed periodic finance charges using fixed interest rates.
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Business Trends and Conditions
____________________________________________________________________________________________

We believe our business and results of operations will be impacted in the future by various trends and conditions. For a discussion of certain trends and
conditions, see “Management's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operations—Business Trends and Conditions” in our 2024 Form
10-K and see below for recent developments. For a discussion of how certain trends and conditions impacted the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025, see “—Results of Operations.”

CFPB final rule on credit card late fees.

On March 5, 2024, the CFPB released a final rule amending its regulations that implement the Truth in Lending Act to lower the safe harbor dollar amount for
credit card late fees from the prior $30 (adjusted to $41 for each subsequent late payment within the next six billing cycles) to $8 and to eliminate the automatic
annual inflation adjustment to such safe harbor dollar amount. The final rule had an original effective date of May 14, 2024. Industry organizations challenged
the final rule in court, and on May 10, 2024, the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas granted an injunction and stay of the final rule.

On April 14, 2025, in the litigation challenging the final late fee rule, the CFPB and the plaintiff industry organizations filed a joint motion asking the court to
vacate the final rule and dismiss the case. On April 15, 2025, the court granted this motion. As such, the final rule has been vacated.

In anticipation that the final rule would become effective, we implemented a number of product, pricing and policy changes in the prior year. In light of the final
rule being vacated, we have incorporated the review of these product, pricing and policy changes with our partners into our usual business practice of
monitoring overall program performance, including assessing whether any adjustments to these changes are warranted. As a result of these reviews, we have
made minor modifications to these changes in 2025.

Extended duration of our credit card program agreements.

In July 2025, we extended our program agreement with Amazon, one of our five largest programs based upon interest and fees on loans for the year ended
December 31, 2024. Following the renewal of this program, the current expiration dates for program agreements with our five largest partners range from 2030
through 2035. During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, we have added or renewed over 40 partners, including our program agreement with
Amazon. As a result, a total of 22 of our 25 largest program agreements now have an expiration date in 2027 or beyond. These 22 program agreements
represented, in the aggregate as a percentage of the total attributable to our 25 largest programs, 98% of our interest and fees on loans for the year ended
December 31, 2024 and 97% of our loan receivables at December 31, 2024.
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Seasonality
____________________________________________________________________________________________

We experience fluctuations in purchase volume and the level of loan receivables as a result of higher seasonal consumer spending and payment patterns that
typically result in an increase of loan receivables from August through a peak in late December, with reductions in loan receivables typically occurring over the
first and second quarters of the following year as customers pay their balances down.

The seasonal impact to purchase volume and the loan receivables balance typically results in fluctuations in our results of operations, delinquency metrics and
the allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total loan receivables between quarterly periods. These fluctuations are generally most evident between the
fourth quarter and the first quarter of the following year.

In addition to the seasonal variance in loan receivables discussed above, we also typically experience a seasonal increase in delinquency rates and delinquent
loan receivables balances during the third and fourth quarters of each year due to lower customer payment rates, resulting in higher net charge-off rates in the
first half of the calendar year. Our delinquency rates and delinquent loan receivables balances typically decrease during the subsequent first and second
quarters as customers begin to pay down their loan balances and return to current status, resulting in lower net charge-off rates in the second half of the
calendar year. Because customers who were delinquent during the fourth quarter of a calendar year have a higher probability of returning to current status
when compared to customers who are delinquent at the end of each of our interim reporting periods, we expect that a higher proportion of delinquent accounts
outstanding at an interim period end will result in charge-offs, as compared to delinquent accounts outstanding at a year end. Consistent with this historical
experience, we generally experience a higher allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total loan receivables at the end of an interim period, as compared
to the end of a calendar year. In addition, even in instances of improving credit metrics such as declining past due amounts, we may experience an increase in
our allowance for credit losses at an interim period end compared to the prior year end, reflecting these same seasonal trends.
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Results of Operations
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Highlights for the Three and Nine Months Ended September 30, 2025

Below are highlights of our performance for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 compared to the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2024, as applicable, except as otherwise noted.

• Net earnings increased to $1.1 billion from $789 million and to $2.8 billion from $2.7 billion for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively. The increases in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 were primarily driven by decreases in provision for credit losses
and higher net interest income, partially offset by higher retailer share arrangements. The increase in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was
partially offset by the after-tax gain on sale related to Pets Best of $802 million in the prior year.

• Loan receivables decreased 2.0% to $100.2 billion at September 30, 2025 compared to $102.2 billion at September 30, 2024, reflecting the
combination of lower purchase volume in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and higher payment rates, as well as the reclassification of $0.2
billion of loan receivables to loan receivables held for sale in the second quarter of 2025.

• Net interest income increased 2.4% to $4.7 billion and 2.1% to $13.7 billion for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively,
primarily driven by lower interest expense, partially offset by lower interest income on investment securities. For the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2025, interest expense decreased 14.0% and 10.1%, respectively, primarily due to lower interest-bearing liabilities cost associated with
lower benchmark rates. Interest and fees on loans remained flat for both the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, primarily reflecting the
impact of our product, pricing and policy changes, offset by a combination of lower benchmark rates and lower late fee incidence, as well as a decrease
in average loan receivables.

• Retailer share arrangements increased 12.0% to $1.0 billion and 17.0% to $2.9 billion for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively, primarily reflecting lower net charge-offs and the impact of our product, pricing and policy changes.

• Over-30 day loan delinquencies as a percentage of period-end loan receivables decreased 39 basis points to 4.39% at September 30, 2025 compared
to September 30, 2024. The net charge-off rate decreased 90 basis points and 52 basis points to 5.16% and 5.74% for the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2025, respectively.

• Provision for credit losses decreased by $451 million, or 28.2%, and $1.4 billion, or 26.9%, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively, primarily driven by reserve releases in the current year as compared to reserve builds in the prior year, as well as lower net charge-offs.
Our allowance coverage ratio (allowance for credit losses as a percentage of period-end loan receivables) decreased to 10.35% at September 30,
2025, as compared to 10.79% at September 30, 2024.

• Other income increased by $8 million to $127 million, and decreased by $1.0 billion to $394 million for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025, respectively. The increase in the three months ended September 30, 2025 reflects the impact of our product, pricing and policy change related
fees. The decrease in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was primarily driven by the $1.1 billion gain on sale related to Pets Best in the prior
year, partially offset by the impact of our product, pricing and policy change related fees in the current year period.    

• Other expense increased by $59 million, or 5.0%, and $164 million, or 4.6%, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively.
The increases in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 were primarily driven by higher employee costs and costs related to technology
investments, partially offset by late fee rule preparatory expenses in the prior year. The increase in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was
also partially offset by lower operational losses.
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• At September 30, 2025, deposits represented 85% of our total funding sources. Total deposits decreased by 2.7% to $79.9 billion at September 30,
2025, compared to December 31, 2024.

• During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, we declared and paid cash dividends totaling $62 million on our Series A 5.625% fixed rate non-
cumulative perpetual preferred stock and our Series B 8.250% fixed rate reset non-cumulative perpetual preferred stock.

• During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, we repurchased $2.0 billion of our outstanding common stock, and declared and paid cash
dividends of $0.85 per share, or $321 million in the aggregate.

• In April 2025 we announced that the Board approved a new share repurchase program of up to $2.5 billion, through June 30, 2026, and increased our
quarterly dividend to $0.30 per common share commencing in the second quarter of 2025. In September 2025, the Board approved an incremental
share repurchase authorization of up to $1.0 billion, through June 30, 2026. At September 30, 2025 we had a total share repurchase authorization of
$2.1 billion remaining. For more information, see “Capital—Dividend and Share Repurchases.”

• In October 2025, we acquired Versatile Credit, a leading multi-source financing platform connecting merchants, lenders and consumers through point-
of-sale solutions.

2025 Partner Agreements

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, and to date, we continued to expand and diversify our portfolio with the addition or renewal of more than 40
partners, which included the following:

• In our Home & Auto sales platform, we extended our program agreements with Ashley HomeStores, Inc., Discount Tire, Gardner White, Home
Furnishings Association and Regency Showrooms. In addition, we expanded our existing Lowe's commercial program and announced the acquisition
of the Lowe’s commercial co-branded credit card portfolio, with loan receivables of approximately $0.8 billion, which is expected to close in the first half
of 2026.

• In our Digital sales platform, we extended our program agreement with Amazon and entered into our new partnership with Sun Country Airlines,
launching its credit card program in September 2025.

• In our Diversified & Value sales platform, we entered into our new partnership with OnePay to become the exclusive issuer of a general purpose and
private label credit card program at Walmart, which launched in September 2025.

• In our Health & Wellness sales platform, we expanded our network through our new partnerships with Dental Intelligence and Texas A&M University
Veterinary Medical Teaching Hospital.

• In our Lifestyle sales platform, we announced our new partnership with Toro and extended our program agreement with American Eagle.

During the second quarter of 2025, we entered into an agreement to sell loan receivables associated with a Home & Auto partner program agreement and
completed the sale in October 2025.
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Summary Earnings

The following table sets forth our results of operations for the periods indicated.

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Interest income $ 5,731  $ 5,785  $ 16,867  $ 16,935 
Interest expense 1,011  1,176  3,162  3,516 
Net interest income 4,720  4,609  13,705  13,419 
Retailer share arrangements (1,024) (914) (2,911) (2,488)
Provision for credit losses 1,146  1,597  3,783  5,172 
Net interest income, after retailer share arrangements and provision for
credit losses 2,550  2,098  7,011  5,759 
Other income 127  119  394  1,393 
Other expense 1,248  1,189  3,736  3,572 
Earnings before provision for income taxes 1,429  1,028  3,669  3,580 
Provision for income taxes 352  239  868  855 
Net earnings $ 1,077  $ 789  $ 2,801  $ 2,725 

Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 1,057  $ 768  $ 2,739  $ 2,674 
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Other Financial and Statistical Data
The following table sets forth certain other financial and statistical data for the periods indicated.    

At and for the At and for the
Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Financial Position Data (Average):
Loan receivables, including held for sale $ 99,885  $ 102,009  $ 100,043  $ 101,484 
Total assets $ 118,157  $ 119,389  $ 119,689  $ 119,429 
Deposits $ 80,852  $ 82,487  $ 82,014  $ 82,872 
Borrowings $ 14,977  $ 15,785  $ 15,734  $ 15,924 
Total equity $ 17,041  $ 15,815  $ 16,832  $ 15,318 
Selected Performance Metrics:
Purchase volume $ 46,005  $ 44,985  $ 132,809  $ 134,218 

Home & Auto $ 11,061  $ 11,215  $ 31,966  $ 33,956 
Digital $ 14,044  $ 13,352  $ 40,170  $ 39,383 
Diversified & Value $ 15,417  $ 14,992  $ 44,542  $ 44,348 
Health & Wellness $ 3,976  $ 3,867  $ 11,757  $ 11,936 
Lifestyle $ 1,371  $ 1,411  $ 3,971  $ 4,180 
Corp, Other $ 136  $ 148  $ 403  $ 415 

Average active accounts (in thousands) 68,318  70,424  68,676  71,052 
Net interest margin 15.62 % 15.04 % 15.05 % 14.68 %
Net charge-offs $ 1,298  $ 1,553  $ 4,297  $ 4,759 
Net charge-offs (annualized) as a % of average loan
receivables, including held for sale 5.16 % 6.06 % 5.74 % 6.26 %
Allowance coverage ratio 10.35 % 10.79 % 10.35 % 10.79 %
Return on assets 3.6 % 2.6 % 3.1 % 3.0 %
Return on equity 25.1 % 19.8 % 22.2 % 23.8 %
Equity to assets 14.42 % 13.25 % 14.06 % 12.83 %
Other expense (annualized) as a % of average loan
receivables, including held for sale 4.96 % 4.64 % 4.99 % 4.70 %
Efficiency ratio 32.6 % 31.2 % 33.4 % 29.0 %
Effective income tax rate 24.6 % 23.2 % 23.7 % 23.9 %
Selected Period-End Data:
Loan receivables $ 100,178  $ 102,193  $ 100,178  $ 102,193 
Allowance for credit losses $ 10,373  $ 11,029  $ 10,373  $ 11,029 
30+ days past due as a % of period-end loan receivables 4.39 % 4.78 % 4.39 % 4.78 %
90+ days past due as a % of period-end loan receivables 2.12 % 2.33 % 2.12 % 2.33 %
Total active accounts (in thousands) 68,585  69,965  68,585  69,965 

______________________
(1) Purchase volume, or net credit sales, represents the aggregate amount of charges incurred on credit cards or other credit product accounts less returns during the period.
(2) Includes activity and accounts associated with loan receivables held for sale.
(3) Active accounts represent credit card or installment loan accounts on which there has been a purchase, payment or outstanding balance in the current month.    
(4) Net interest margin represents annualized net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.
(5) Allowance coverage ratio represents allowance for credit losses divided by total period-end loan receivables.
(6) Return on assets represents annualized net earnings as a percentage of average total assets.
(7) Return on equity represents annualized net earnings as a percentage of average total equity.
(8) Equity to assets represents average total equity as a percentage of average total assets.
(9) Efficiency ratio represents (i) other expense, divided by (ii) sum of net interest income, plus other income, less retailer share arrangements.
(10) Based on customer statement-end balances extrapolated to the respective period-end date.

(1)(2)

(2)(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

(7)

(8)

(9)

(10)

(10)

(2)(3)
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Average Balance Sheet

The following tables set forth information for the periods indicated regarding average balance sheet data, which are used in the discussion of interest income,
interest expense and net interest income that follows.

  2025 2024

Three months ended September 30 ($ in millions)
Average
Balance

Interest
Income /
Expense

Average
Yield /
Rate

Average
Balance

Interest
Income /
Expense

Average
Yield /
Rate

Assets
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-earning cash and equivalents $ 17,131  $ 187  4.33 % $ 17,316  $ 235  5.40 %
Securities available for sale 2,872  34  4.70 % 2,587  28  4.31 %
Loan receivables, including held for sale :
Credit cards 92,176  5,255  22.62 % 93,785  5,236  22.21 %
Consumer installment loans 5,618  208  14.69 % 6,107  238  15.50 %
Commercial credit products 2,006  46  9.10 % 1,992  46  9.19 %
Other 85  1  4.67 % 125  2  6.37 %
Total loan receivables, including held for sale 99,885  5,510  21.89 % 102,009  5,522  21.54 %
Total interest-earning assets 119,888  5,731  18.97 % 121,912  5,785  18.88 %
Non-interest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks 892  847 
Allowance for credit losses (10,536) (10,994)
Other assets 7,913  7,624 
Total non-interest-earning assets (1,731) (2,523)
Total assets $ 118,157  $ 119,389 
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposit accounts $ 80,442  $ 812  4.00 % $ 82,100  $ 968  4.69 %
Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities 7,768  105  5.36 % 7,817  108  5.50 %
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes 7,209  94  5.17 % 7,968  100  4.99 %
Total interest-bearing liabilities 95,419  1,011  4.20 % 97,885  1,176  4.78 %
Non-interest-bearing liabilities:
Non-interest-bearing deposit accounts 410  387 
Other liabilities 5,287  5,302 
Total non-interest-bearing liabilities 5,697  5,689 
Total liabilities 101,116  103,574 
Equity
Total equity 17,041  15,815 
Total liabilities and equity $ 118,157  $ 119,389 
Interest rate spread 14.76 % 14.10 %
Net interest income $ 4,720  $ 4,609 
Net interest margin 15.62 % 15.04 %

(1) (1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)
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  2025 2024

Nine months ended September 30 ($ in millions)
Average
Balance

Interest
Income /
Expense

Average
Yield /
Rate

Average
Balance

Interest
Income /
Expense

Average
Yield /
Rate

Assets
Interest-earning assets:
Interest-earning cash and equivalents $ 18,785  $ 618  4.40 % $ 17,685  $ 720  5.44 %
Securities available for sale 2,958  99  4.47 % 2,915  99  4.54 %
Loan receivables, including held for sale :
Credit cards 92,287  15,386  22.29 % 93,757  15,345  21.86 %
Consumer installment loans 5,714  626  14.65 % 5,644  630  14.91 %
Commercial credit products 1,944  134  9.22 % 1,957  134  9.15 %
Other 98  4  5.46 % 126  7  7.42 %
Total loan receivables, including held for sale 100,043  16,150  21.58 % 101,484  16,116  21.21 %
Total interest-earning assets 121,786  16,867  18.52 % 122,084  16,935  18.53 %
Non-interest-earning assets:
Cash and due from banks 876  892 
Allowance for credit losses (10,755) (10,850)
Other assets 7,782  7,303 
Total non-interest-earning assets (2,097) (2,655)
Total assets $ 119,689  $ 119,429 
Liabilities
Interest-bearing liabilities:
Interest-bearing deposit accounts $ 81,601  $ 2,549  4.18 % $ 82,481  $ 2,889  4.68 %
Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities 7,960  313  5.26 % 7,686  323  5.61 %
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes 7,774  300  5.16 % 8,238  304  4.93 %
Total interest-bearing liabilities 97,335  3,162  4.34 % 98,405  3,516  4.77 %
Non-interest-bearing liabilities:
Non-interest-bearing deposit accounts 413  391 
Other liabilities 5,109  5,315 
Total non-interest-bearing liabilities 5,522  5,706 
Total liabilities 102,857  104,111 
Equity
Total equity 16,832  15,318 
Total liabilities and equity $ 119,689  $ 119,429 
Interest rate spread 14.17 % 13.76 %
Net interest income $ 13,705  $ 13,419 
Net interest margin 15.05 % 14.68 %

________________________________________
(1) Average yields/rates are based on annualized total interest income/expense divided by average balances.
(2) Includes average restricted cash balances of $159 million and $57 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $495 million and $76

million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
(3) Interest income on loan receivables includes fees on loans, which primarily consist of late fees on our credit products, of $592 million and $652 million for the three months

ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $1.7 billion and $1.9 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.
(4) Interest rate spread represents the difference between the yield on total interest-earning assets and the rate on total interest-bearing liabilities.
(5) Net interest margin represents annualized net interest income divided by average total interest-earning assets.

(1) (1)

(2)

(3)

(4)

(5)
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For a summary description of the composition of our key line items included in our Statements of Earnings, see Management's Discussion and Analysis of
Financial Condition and Results of Operations in our 2024 Form 10-K.

Interest Income

Interest income decreased 0.9% and 0.4% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, reflecting flat interest and fees on loans and
lower interest income from our liquidity portfolio. The trend in interest and fees on loans reflects the impacts of our product, pricing and policy changes, offset by
a combination of lower benchmark rates and lower late fee incidence, as well as a decrease in average loan receivables.

Average interest-earning assets

Three months ended September 30 ($ in millions) 2025 % 2024 %
Loan receivables, including held for sale $ 99,885  83.3 % $ 102,009  83.7 %
Liquidity portfolio and other 20,003  16.7 % 19,903  16.3 %
Total average interest-earning assets $ 119,888  100.0 % $ 121,912  100.0 %

Nine months ended September 30 ($ in millions) 2025 % 2024 %
Loan receivables, including held for sale $ 100,043  82.1 % $ 101,484  83.1 %
Liquidity portfolio and other 21,743  17.9 % 20,600  16.9 %
Total average interest-earning assets $ 121,786  100.0 % $ 122,084  100.0 %

Average loan receivables, including held for sale, decreased 2.1% and 1.4% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, primarily
driven by lower purchase volume in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and higher payment rates. Purchase volume increased by 2.3% and
decreased by 1.0% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, reflecting the continued impact of previous credit actions as well as
selective consumer spending.

Yield on average interest-earning assets

The yield on average interest-earning assets increased for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 primarily due to increases in the yield on
average loan receivables, partially offset by a lower yield on our liquidity portfolio and a decrease in the percentage of interest-earning assets attributable to
loan receivables. The loan receivables yield increased 35 basis points to 21.89% and 37 basis points to 21.58% for the three and nine months ended
September 30, 2025, primarily driven by the impacts of our product, pricing and policy changes, partially offset by a combination of lower benchmark rates and
lower late fee incidence.

Interest Expense

Interest expense decreased by $165 million to $1.0 billion and $354 million to $3.2 billion, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively, primarily due to lower interest-bearing liabilities cost associated with lower benchmark rates. Our cost of funds decreased to 4.20% and 4.34% for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, compared to 4.78% and 4.77% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2024,
respectively.

Average interest-bearing liabilities

Three months ended September 30 ($ in millions) 2025 % 2024 %
Interest-bearing deposit accounts $ 80,442  84.3 % $ 82,100  83.9 %
Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities 7,768  8.1 % 7,817  8.0 %
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes 7,209  7.6 % 7,968  8.1 %
Total average interest-bearing liabilities $ 95,419  100.0 % $ 97,885  100.0 %
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Nine months ended September 30 ($ in millions) 2025 % 2024 %
Interest-bearing deposit accounts $ 81,601  83.8 % $ 82,481  83.8 %
Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities 7,960  8.2 % 7,686  7.8 %
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes 7,774  8.0 % 8,238  8.4 %
Total average interest-bearing liabilities $ 97,335  100.0 % $ 98,405  100.0 %

Net Interest Income

Net interest income increased by $111 million, or 2.4%, and $286 million, or 2.1%, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively,
resulting from the changes in interest income and interest expense discussed above.

Retailer Share Arrangements

Retailer share arrangements increased by $110 million, or 12.0% and $423 million to 17.0%, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively, reflecting lower net charge-offs and the impact of our product, pricing and policy changes.

Provision for Credit Losses

Provision for credit losses decreased by $451 million, or 28.2%, and $1.4 billion, or 26.9%, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively, primarily driven by reserve releases in the current year as compared to reserve builds in the prior year, as well as lower net charge-offs.

The reserve releases for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 were $152 million and $514 million, respectively, as compared to reserve builds
of $44 million and $413 million, respectively, in the prior year periods. The current year reserve releases included the impact of a $45 million reserve build for
off-balance sheet credit exposures associated with the acquisition of the Lowe's commercial co-branded credit card portfolio, expected to close in the first half
of 2026. The reserve build in the nine months ended September 30, 2024 included $180 million related to the Ally Lending acquisition.

Net charge-offs for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 decreased by $255 million and $462 million, respectively. The net charge-off rate for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 decreased by 90 basis points to 5.16%, and 52 basis points to 5.74%, respectively, as compared to the
prior year periods.

Other Income
Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,

($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Interchange revenue $ 272  $ 256  $ 778  $ 760 
Protection product revenue 149  145  440  411 
Loyalty programs (368) (346) (1,039) (1,011)
Other 74  64  215  1,233 
Total other income $ 127  $ 119  $ 394  $ 1,393 

Other income increased by $8 million to $127 million, and decreased by $1.0 billion, to $394 million, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively.

The increase in the three months ended September 30, 2025 included the impact of our product, pricing and policy change related fees in the current year
period. The decrease in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was primarily driven by the $1.1 billion gain on sale related to Pets Best in the prior year,
partially offset by the impact of our product, pricing and policy change related fees in the current year period.
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Other Expense

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Employee costs $ 503  $ 464  $ 1,518  $ 1,394 
Professional fees 240  231  693  687 
Marketing and business development 120  123  363  377 
Information processing 226  203  660  596 
Other 159  168  502  518 
Total other expense $ 1,248  $ 1,189  $ 3,736  $ 3,572 

Other expense increased by $59 million, or 5.0%, and $164 million, or 4.6% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively.

The increases in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 were primarily driven by increases in employee costs and higher information
processing costs related to technology investments, partially offset by late fee rule preparatory expenses in the prior year. The increase in employee costs
was primarily driven by higher variable compensation, as well as additional headcount to support technology investments and higher medical benefit costs.
The increase in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was also partially offset by lower operational losses.

Provision for Income Taxes

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Effective tax rate 24.6 % 23.2 % 23.7 % 23.9 %
Provision for income taxes $ 352  $ 239  $ 868  $ 855 

The effective tax rate for the three months ended September 30, 2025 increased compared to the same period in the prior year primarily due to higher state tax
rates in the current year and the resolution of certain tax matters in the prior year period. The effective tax rate for the nine months ended September 30, 2025
decreased primarily due to the tax benefit from remeasuring our deferred tax assets in the second quarter of 2025 for increases in state tax rates. The effective
tax rate differs from the applicable U.S. federal statutory tax rate primarily due to state income taxes.

On July 4, 2025, the One Big Beautiful Bill Act (the “Act”) was enacted into law, which included certain modifications to U.S. tax law. The Company has
completed its initial evaluation of the provisions of the Act and does not expect it to have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

19



Platform Analysis

As discussed above under “—Our Sales Platforms,” we offer our credit products primarily through five sales platforms (Home & Auto, Digital, Diversified &
Value, Health & Wellness and Lifestyle). The following is a discussion of certain supplemental information for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025, for each of our five sales platforms and Corp, Other.

In the second quarter of 2025, we entered into an agreement to sell $0.2 billion of loan receivables associated with a Home & Auto partner program agreement.
In connection with this agreement, revenue activities for the portfolio were no longer managed within our Home & Auto sales platform. All related metrics
previously reported within our Home & Auto sales platform, are now reported within Corp, Other below. We have also recast all prior-period reported metrics for
our Home & Auto sales platform and Corp, Other to conform to the current-period presentation.

Home & Auto

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Purchase volume $ 11,061  $ 11,215  $ 31,966  $ 33,956 
Period-end loan receivables $ 30,295  $ 32,321  $ 30,295  $ 32,321 
Average loan receivables, including held for sale $ 30,260  $ 32,403  $ 30,400  $ 32,151 
Average active accounts (in thousands) 17,749  19,030  17,831  19,002 

Interest and fees on loans $ 1,443  $ 1,479  $ 4,240  $ 4,260 
Other income $ 54  $ 55  $ 162  $ 124 

Home & Auto interest and fees on loans decreased by $36 million, or 2.4%, and by $20 million, or 0.5%, for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025, respectively, primarily driven by lower average loan receivables, partially offset by higher loan receivables yield.

The increases in loan receivables yield reflect the impact of product, pricing and policy changes, partially offset by lower late fee incidence. The decreases in
average loan receivables were primarily driven by lower purchase volume and higher payment rates. Purchase volume decreased 1.4% and 5.9% for the three
and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, reflecting consumers continuing to manage discretionary spend, lower average active accounts and
the impacts from our previous credit actions, partially offset by strong growth in spend per account. Average active accounts decreased by 6.7% and 6.2% for
the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively.

Other income was flat for the three months ended September 30, 2025, and increased $38 million, or 30.6%, for the nine months ended September 30, 2025.
The increase in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was primarily due to the impact of product, pricing and policy change related fees.

Digital

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Purchase volume $ 14,044  $ 13,352  $ 40,170  $ 39,383 
Period-end loan receivables $ 28,179  $ 27,771  $ 28,179  $ 27,771 
Average loan receivables, including held for sale $ 27,880  $ 27,704  $ 27,888  $ 27,776 
Average active accounts (in thousands) 20,680  20,787  20,627  21,033 

Interest and fees on loans $ 1,631  $ 1,593  $ 4,751  $ 4,704 
Other income $ (2) $ 4  $ 7  $ 10 
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Digital interest and fees on loans increased by $38 million, or 2.4%, and $47 million, or 1.0% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025,
respectively, primarily driven by higher loan receivable yield, reflecting the impacts of product, pricing and policy changes, offset by lower benchmark rates and
lower late fee incidence. Purchase volume increased by 5.2% and 2.0% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, primarily driven by higher
spend per account and customer response to enhanced product offerings and refreshed value propositions, partially offset by lower average active accounts
and the impact from our previous credit actions. Average active accounts decreased by 0.5% and 1.9% for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025, respectively.

Diversified & Value

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Purchase volume $ 15,417  $ 14,992  $ 44,542  $ 44,348 
Period-end loan receivables $ 19,500  $ 19,466  $ 19,500  $ 19,466 
Average loan receivables, including held for sale $ 19,440  $ 19,413  $ 19,482  $ 19,455 
Average active accounts (in thousands) 19,470  19,960  19,735  20,448 

Interest and fees on loans $ 1,192  $ 1,209  $ 3,529  $ 3,588 
Other income $ (3) $ (11) $ (6) $ (50)

Diversified & Value interest and fees on loans decreased by $17 million, or 1.4%, and $59 million, or 1.6%, for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025, respectively, primarily driven by lower loan receivables yield, reflecting lower benchmark rates and lower late fee incidence, partially offset by the impact
of product, pricing and policy changes.

Purchase volume increased 2.8%, for the three months ended September 30, 2025, reflecting retailer performance and growth in out-of-partner spend, partially
offset by lower active accounts and impacts from our prior credit actions. Purchase volume was flat for the nine months ended September 30, 2025, as growth
in spend per account was offset by the factors discussed above for the three months ended September 30, 2025. Average active accounts decreased by 2.5%
and 3.5% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively.

Health & Wellness

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Purchase volume $ 3,976  $ 3,867  $ 11,757  $ 11,936 
Period-end loan receivables $ 15,447  $ 15,439  $ 15,447  $ 15,439 
Average loan receivables, including held for sale $ 15,347  $ 15,311  $ 15,281  $ 15,041 
Average active accounts (in thousands) 7,730  7,801  7,743  7,713 

Interest and fees on loans $ 967  $ 956  $ 2,804  $ 2,736 
Other income $ 73  $ 68  $ 214  $ 182 

Health & Wellness interest and fees on loans increased by $11 million, or 1.2%, and $68 million, or 2.5%, for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025, respectively. The increases in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 were primarily driven by an increase in loan receivables yield,
reflecting the impact of product, pricing and policy changes, partially offset by lower late fee incidence. The nine months ended September 30, 2025 also
reflects higher average loan receivables, partially offset by higher reversals.
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Purchase volume increased 2.8% for the three months ended September 30, 2025, as higher spend per account exceeded the impact of lower average active
accounts, reflecting growth in Pet and Audiology, partially offset by lower spend in Cosmetic. Purchase volume decreased 1.5% for the nine months ended
September 30, 2025 reflecting lower spend in Cosmetic and Dental, combined with the impact of previous credit actions, partially offset by growth in Pet and
Audiology. Average active accounts decreased 0.9% and increased 0.4% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively.

Other income increased by $5 million, or 7.4%, and $32 million, or 17.6%, for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively. The increase
in the three months ended September 30, 2025 was primarily due to higher protection product revenue and higher interchange revenue, partially offset by
higher loyalty costs. The increase in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was primarily due to higher protection product revenue and the impact of
product, pricing and policy change related fees.

Lifestyle

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Purchase volume $ 1,371  $ 1,411  $ 3,971  $ 4,180 
Period-end loan receivables $ 6,644  $ 6,831  $ 6,644  $ 6,831 
Average loan receivables, including held for sale $ 6,652  $ 6,823  $ 6,671  $ 6,726 
Average active accounts (in thousands) 2,543  2,677  2,583  2,668 

Interest and fees on loans $ 264  $ 270  $ 786  $ 783 
Other income $ 11  $ 9  $ 30  $ 23 

Lifestyle interest and fees on loans decreased by $6 million, or 2.2%, and increased by $3 million, or 0.4%, for the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025, respectively. The decrease for the three months ended September 30, 2025 was primarily driven by lower average loan receivables, lower late fee
incidence and lower benchmark rates, partially offset by the impact of product, pricing and policy changes. The increase in the nine months ended
September 30, 2025 was primarily driven by higher loan receivables yield, reflecting the impact of product, pricing and policy changes partially offset by lower
late fee incidence and lower benchmark rates.

Purchase volume decreased by 2.8% and 5.0% for the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025, respectively, primarily reflecting lower average
active accounts, as well as lower spend in Outdoor and Specialty as consumers continued to manage discretionary spend and the impacts from our previous
credit actions. The decrease in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 was also driven by lower spend in Luxury.

Corp, Other

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Purchase volume $ 136  $ 148  $ 403  $ 415 
Period-end loan receivables $ 113  $ 365  $ 113  $ 365 
Average loan receivables, including held for sale $ 306  $ 355  $ 321  $ 335 
Average active accounts (in thousands) 146  169  157  188 

Interest and fees on loans $ 13  $ 15  $ 40  $ 45 
Other income $ (6) $ (6) $ (13) $ 1,104 

Other income for the nine months ended September 30, 2024 in Corp, Other primarily included the gain on sale related to the Pets Best disposition of $1.1
billion.
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Loan Receivables
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Loan receivables are our largest category of assets and represent our primary source of revenue. The following discussion provides supplemental information
regarding our loan receivables portfolio. See Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies and Note 5. Loan Receivables and
Allowance for Credit Losses to our condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information related to our loan receivables.

The following table sets forth the composition of our loan receivables portfolio by product type at the dates indicated.

($ in millions) At September 30, 2025 % At December 31, 2024 %
Loan receivables
Credit cards $ 92,550  92.4 % $ 96,818  92.5 %
Consumer installment loans 5,584  5.6  5,971  5.7 
Commercial credit products 1,961  1.9  1,826  1.7 
Other 83  0.1  106  0.1 
Total loan receivables $ 100,178  100.0 % $ 104,721  100.0 %

Loan receivables decreased 4.3% to $100.2 billion at September 30, 2025, compared to $104.7 billion at December 31, 2024, and decreased 2.0% compared
to $102.2 billion at September 30, 2024. These decreases were primarily driven by the combination of lower purchase volume in the nine months ended
September 30, 2025 and higher payment rates, as well as the seasonality of our business which also impacted the decrease compared to December 31, 2024.

The decrease in Loan receivables for both periods also included the impact of the reclassification of $0.2 billion of loan receivables to Loan receivables held for
sale on our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position in the second quarter of 2025.

Our loan receivables portfolio had the following geographic concentration at September 30, 2025.

($ in millions) Loan Receivables
Outstanding

% of Total Loan
Receivables
OutstandingState

Texas $ 11,085  11.1 %
California $ 10,225  10.2 %
Florida $ 9,428  9.4 %
New York $ 4,729  4.7 %
North Carolina $ 4,223  4.2 %

Delinquencies

Over-30 day loan delinquencies as a percentage of period-end loan receivables decreased to 4.39% at September 30, 2025 from 4.78% at September 30,
2024, and decreased from 4.70% at December 31, 2024. These decreases include the impact of the previous credit actions we have taken across our portfolio.

Net Charge-Offs

Net charge-offs consist of the unpaid principal balance of loans held for investment that we determine are uncollectible, net of recovered amounts. We exclude
accrued and unpaid finance charges and fees and third-party fraud losses from charge-offs. Charged-off and recovered finance charges and fees are included
in interest and fees on loans while third-party fraud losses are included in Other expense. Charge-offs are recorded as a reduction to the allowance for credit
losses and subsequent recoveries of previously charged-off amounts are credited to the allowance for credit losses. Costs incurred to recover charged-off loans
are recorded as collection expense and included in Other expense in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
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The tables below set forth the net charge-offs and ratio of annualized net charge-offs to average loan receivables, including held for sale, (“net charge-off rate”)
for the periods indicated.

Three months ended September 30,
2025 2024

($ in millions) Amount Rate Amount Rate
Credit cards $ 1,197  5.15 % $ 1,429  6.06 %
Consumer installment loans 74  5.23 % 89  5.80 %
Commercial credit products 26  5.14 % 35  6.99 %
Other 1  4.69 % —  — %
Total net charge-offs $ 1,298  5.16 % $ 1,553  6.06 %

Nine months ended September 30,
2025 2024

($ in millions) Amount Rate Amount Rate
Credit cards $ 3,963  5.74 % $ 4,392  6.26 %
Consumer installment loans 244  5.71 % 263  6.22 %
Commercial credit products 89  6.12 % 103  7.03 %
Other 1  1.37 % 1  1.06 %
Total net charge-offs $ 4,297  5.74 % $ 4,759  6.26 %

Allowance for Credit Losses

The allowance for credit losses totaled $10.4 billion at September 30, 2025, compared to $10.9 billion at December 31, 2024, respectively, and $11.0 billion at
September 30, 2024, and reflects our estimate of expected credit losses for the life of the loan receivables on our Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position.

The decreases in allowance for credit losses compared to December 31, 2024 and September 30, 2024 primarily reflects the decrease in delinquent balances
as a percentage of loan receivables, as compared to the prior year periods, as well as expectations of the macroeconomic environment, and the decrease in
loan receivables compared to the prior year periods. Our allowance for credit losses as a percentage of total period end loan receivables decreased to 10.35%
at September 30, 2025, from 10.44% at December 31, 2024 and from 10.79% at September 30, 2024. See Note 5. Loan Receivables and Allowance for Credit
Losses to our condensed consolidated financial statements for additional information.
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Funding, Liquidity and Capital Resources
____________________________________________________________________________________________

We maintain a strong focus on liquidity and capital. Our funding, liquidity and capital policies are designed to ensure that our business has the liquidity and
capital resources to support our daily operations, our business growth, our credit ratings and our regulatory and policy requirements, in a cost effective and
prudent manner through expected and unexpected market environments.

Funding Sources

Our primary funding sources include cash from operations, deposits (direct and brokered deposits), securitized financings and senior and subordinated
unsecured notes.

The following tables summarize information concerning our funding sources during the periods indicated:
  2025 2024

Three months ended September 30 ($ in millions)
Average
Balance %

Average
Rate

Average
Balance %

Average
Rate

Deposits $ 80,442  84.3 % 4.0 % $ 82,100  83.9 % 4.7 %
Securitized financings 7,768  8.1  5.4 % 7,817  8.0  5.5 %
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes 7,209  7.6  5.2 % 7,968  8.1  5.0 %
Total $ 95,419  100.0 % 4.2 % $ 97,885  100.0 % 4.8 %

______________________

(1) Excludes $410 million and $387 million average balance of non-interest-bearing deposits for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Non-
interest-bearing deposits comprise less than 10% of total deposits for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.

  2025 2024

Nine months ended September 30 ($ in millions)
Average
Balance %

Average
Rate

Average
Balance %

Average
Rate

Deposits $ 81,601  83.8 % 4.2 % $ 82,481  83.8 % 4.7 %
Securitized financings 7,960  8.2  5.3 % 7,686  7.8  5.6 %
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes 7,774  8.0  5.2 % 8,238  8.4  4.9 %
Total $ 97,335  100.0 % 4.3 % $ 98,405  100.0 % 4.8 %

______________________

(1) Excludes $413 million and $391 million average balance of non-interest-bearing deposits for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively. Non-
interest-bearing deposits comprise less than 10% of total deposits for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.

Deposits

We obtain deposits directly from retail customers, affinity relationships and commercial customers (“direct deposits”) and through third-party firms that offer our
deposits to their customers (“brokered deposits”). At September 30, 2025, we had $73.7 billion in direct deposits and $6.2 billion in brokered deposits consisting
of certificates of deposit and network deposit sweeps procured through a program arranger that channels account deposits to us. A key part of our liquidity plan
and funding strategy is to continue to utilize our direct deposit base as a source of stable and diversified low-cost funding.

Our direct deposits are primarily from retail customers and include a range of FDIC-insured deposit products, including certificates of deposit, IRAs, money
market accounts, savings accounts and affinity deposits.

Brokered deposits are primarily from retail customers of large brokerage firms. We have relationships with multiple brokers that offer our deposits through their
networks. Our brokered deposits primarily consist of certificates of deposit that bear interest at a fixed rate. These deposits generally are not subject to early
withdrawal.

(1)

(1)
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Our ability to attract deposits is sensitive to, among other things, the interest rates we pay, and therefore, we bear funding risk if we fail to pay higher rates, or
interest rate risk if we are required to pay higher rates, to retain existing deposits or attract new deposits. To mitigate these risks, our funding strategy includes a
range of deposit products, and we seek to maintain access to multiple other funding sources, including securitized financings (including our undrawn committed
and uncommitted capacity) and unsecured debt.

The following tables summarize certain information regarding our interest-bearing deposits by type (all of which constitute U.S. deposits) for the periods
indicated:

Three months ended September 30 ($ in millions)

2025 2024
Average
Balance %

Average
Rate

Average
Balance %

Average
Rate

Direct deposits:
Certificates of deposit
(including IRA certificates of deposit) $ 39,621  49.3 % 4.2 % $ 40,454  49.3 % 4.9 %
Savings, money market, and demand accounts 33,398  41.5  3.7 % 30,281  36.9  4.5 %

Brokered deposits 7,423  9.2  4.4 % 11,365  13.8  4.6 %
Total interest-bearing deposits $ 80,442  100.0 % 4.0 % $ 82,100  100.0 % 4.7 %

Nine months ended September 30 ($ in millions)

2025 2024
Average
Balance %

Average
Rate

Average
Balance %

Average
Rate

Direct deposits:
Certificates of deposit
(including IRA certificates of deposit) $ 40,203  49.3 % 4.4 % $ 40,614  49.3 % 4.8 %
Savings, money market, and demand accounts 32,869  40.3  3.8 % 29,467  35.7  4.6 %

Brokered deposits 8,529  10.4  4.4 % 12,400  15.0  4.5 %
Total interest-bearing deposits $ 81,601  100.0 % 4.2 % $ 82,481  100.0 % 4.7 %

Our deposit liabilities provide funding with maturities ranging from one day to ten years. At September 30, 2025, the weighted average maturity of our interest-
bearing time deposits was approximately one year. See Note 8. Deposits to our condensed consolidated financial statements for more information on the
maturities of our time deposits.

The standard FDIC deposit insurance amount is $250,000 per depositor, for each account ownership category. Our estimate of the uninsured portion of total
deposit balances, excluding any intercompany balance, at September 30, 2025 was $6.5 billion.

The following table summarizes the portion of uninsured deposits that are certificates of deposit by contractual maturity at September 30, 2025.

($ in millions)
3 Months or

Less

Over
3 Months
but within
6 Months

Over
6 Months
but within
12 Months

Over
12 Months Total

Certificates of deposit (including IRA certificates of deposit) $ 241  $ 710  $ 1,683  $ 1,295  $ 3,929 

Securitized Financings

We access the asset-backed securitization market using the Synchrony Card Issuance Trust (“SYNIT”) through which we may issue asset-backed securities
through both public transactions and private transactions funded by financial institutions and commercial paper conduits. In addition, we issue asset-backed
securities in private transactions through the Synchrony Credit Card Master Note Trust (“SYNCT”) and the Synchrony Sales Finance Master Trust (“SFT”).
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The following table summarizes expected contractual maturities of the investors’ interests in securitized financings, excluding debt premiums, discounts and
issuance costs at September 30, 2025.

($ in millions)
Less Than
One Year

One Year
Through

Three
Years

Four Years
Through

Five
Years

After Five
Years Total

Scheduled maturities of borrowings—owed to securitization
investors:
SYNCT $ 1,150  $ 500  $ —  $ —  $ 1,650 
SFT —  1,275  —  —  1,275 
SYNIT 1,000  3,750  —  —  4,750 
Total borrowings—owed to securitization investors $ 2,150  $ 5,525  $ —  $ —  $ 7,675 

______________________

(1) Excludes any subordinated classes of SYNIT notes that we owned at September 30, 2025.

We retain exposure to the performance of trust assets through: (i) in the case of SYNCT, SFT and SYNIT, subordinated retained interests in the loan
receivables transferred to the trust in excess of the principal amount of the notes for a given series that provide credit enhancement for a particular series, as
well as a pari passu seller’s interest in each trust and (ii) in the case of SYNIT, any subordinated classes of notes that we own.

All of our securitized financings include early repayment triggers, referred to as early amortization events, including events related to material breaches of
representations, warranties or covenants, inability or failure of the Bank to transfer loan receivables to the trusts as required under the securitization documents,
failure to make required payments or deposits pursuant to the securitization documents, and certain insolvency-related events with respect to the related
securitization depositor, Synchrony (solely with respect to SYNCT) or the Bank. In addition, an early amortization event will occur with respect to a series if the
excess spread as it relates to a particular series or for the trust, as applicable, falls below zero. Following an early amortization event, principal collections on
the loan receivables in the applicable trust are applied to repay principal of the trust's asset-backed securities rather than being available on a revolving basis to
fund the origination activities of our business. The occurrence of an early amortization event also would limit or terminate our ability to issue future series out of
the trust in which the early amortization event occurred. No early amortization event has occurred with respect to any of the securitized financings in SYNCT,
SFT or SYNIT.

The following table summarizes for each of our trusts the three-month rolling average excess spread at September 30, 2025.

Note Principal Balance
($ in millions)

# of Series
Outstanding

Three-Month Rolling
Average Excess

Spread
SYNCT $ 1,650  3  ~ 16.3% to 16.9%
SFT $ 1,275  5  13.2 %
SYNIT $ 4,750  1  16.7 %

______________________

(1) Represents the excess spread (generally calculated as interest income collected from the applicable pool of loan receivables less applicable net charge-offs, interest
expense and servicing costs, divided by the aggregate principal amount of loan receivables in the applicable pool) for SFT or, in the case of SYNCT, a range of the excess
spreads relating to the particular series issued within such trust or, in the case of SYNIT, the excess spread relating to the one outstanding series issued within such trust, in
all cases omitting any series that have not been outstanding for at least three full monthly periods and calculated in accordance with the applicable trust or series
documentation, for the three securitization monthly periods ended September 30, 2025.

(1)

(1)
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Senior and Subordinated Unsecured Notes

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, we made repayments totaling $1.8 billion of senior unsecured notes issued by Synchrony Financial and
$900 million of senior unsecured notes issued by Synchrony Bank.

The following table provides a summary of our outstanding senior and subordinated unsecured notes at September 30, 2025, which includes $800 million and
$1.0 billion of senior unsecured notes issued by Synchrony Financial in March 2025 and July 2025, respectively.

Issuance Date Interest Rate Maturity
Principal Amount

Outstanding
($ in millions)
Fixed rate senior unsecured notes:

Synchrony Financial
August 2016 3.700% August 2026 500 
December 2017 3.950% December 2027 1,000 
March 2019 5.150% March 2029 650 
October 2021 2.875% October 2031 750 

Synchrony Bank
August 2022 5.625% August 2027 600 

Fixed to floating rate senior unsecured notes:
Synchrony Financial
August 2024 5.935% August 2030 750 
March 2025 5.450% March 2031 800 
July 2025 5.019% July 2029 500 
July 2025 6.000% July 2036 500 

Fixed rate subordinated unsecured notes:
Synchrony Financial
February 2023 7.250% February 2033 750 

Total fixed rate and fixed to floating rate senior and
subordinated unsecured notes $ 6,800 

______________________

(1) Weighted average interest rate of all senior and subordinated unsecured notes at September 30, 2025 was 5.06%.
(2) The amounts shown exclude unamortized debt discounts, premiums and issuance costs.
(3) Interest rate fixed through August 1, 2029; resets August 2, 2029 to floating rate based on compounded Secured Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR") plus 213 basis points.
(4) Fixed through March 6, 2030; resets March 7, 2030 to floating rate based on SOFR plus 168 basis points.
(5) Fixed through July 28, 2028; resets July 29, 2028 to floating rate based on SOFR plus 139.5 basis points.
(6) Fixed through July 28, 2035; resets July 29, 2035 to floating rate based on SOFR plus 207 basis points.

Short-Term Borrowings

Except as described above, there were no material short-term borrowings for the periods presented.

Covenants

The indentures pursuant to which our senior and subordinated unsecured notes have been issued include various covenants. If we do not satisfy any of these
covenants, the maturity of amounts outstanding thereunder may be accelerated and become payable. We were in compliance with all of these covenants at
September 30, 2025.

At September 30, 2025, we were not in default under any of our credit facilities.

(1) (2)

(3)

(4)

(5)

(6)

28



Credit Ratings

Our borrowing costs and capacity in certain funding markets, including securitizations and senior and subordinated debt, may be affected by the credit ratings
of the Company, the Bank and the ratings of our asset-backed securities.

The table below reflects our current credit ratings and outlooks:

S&P Fitch Ratings
Synchrony Financial

Senior unsecured debt BBB- BBB
Subordinated unsecured debt BB+ BBB-
Preferred stock BB- BB-
Outlook for Synchrony Financial Stable Stable

Synchrony Bank
Senior unsecured debt BBB BBB
Outlook for Synchrony Bank Stable Stable

In addition, certain of the asset-backed securities issued by SYNIT are rated by Fitch, S&P and/or Moody’s. A credit rating is not a recommendation to buy, sell
or hold securities, may be subject to revision or withdrawal at any time by the assigning rating organization, and each rating should be evaluated independently
of any other rating. Downgrades in these credit ratings could materially increase the cost of our funding from, and restrict our access to, the capital markets.

Liquidity
____________________________________________________________________________________________

We seek to ensure that we have adequate liquidity to sustain business operations, fund asset growth, satisfy debt obligations and to meet regulatory
expectations under normal and stress conditions.

We maintain policies outlining the overall framework and general principles for managing liquidity risk across our business, which is the responsibility of our
Asset and Liability Management Committee, a management committee under the oversight of the Risk Committee of our Board of Directors. We employ a
variety of metrics to monitor and manage liquidity. We perform regular liquidity stress testing and contingency planning as part of our liquidity management
process. We evaluate a range of stress scenarios including Company specific and systemic events that could impact funding sources and our ability to meet
liquidity needs.

We maintain a liquidity portfolio, which at September 30, 2025 had $18.2 billion of liquid assets, primarily consisting of cash and equivalents, less cash in transit
which is not considered to be liquid, compared to $17.2 billion of liquid assets at December 31, 2024. The increase in liquid assets primarily reflects the
decrease in loan receivables as compared to December 31, 2024, partially offset by lower deposits and a reduction in senior unsecured debt. We believe our
liquidity position at September 30, 2025 remains strong as we continue to operate in a period of uncertain economic conditions and we will continue to closely
monitor our liquidity as economic conditions change.

As a general matter, investments included in our liquidity portfolio are expected to be highly liquid, giving us the ability to readily convert them to cash. The level
and composition of our liquidity portfolio may fluctuate based upon the level of expected maturities of our funding sources as well as operational requirements
and market conditions.

We also have access to several additional sources of liquidity beyond our liquidity portfolio. At September 30, 2025, we had an aggregate of $10.0 billion of
available borrowing capacity through the Federal Reserve’s discount window. In addition, we had $2.6 billion of undrawn capacity on our securitized financings,
subject to customary borrowing conditions, from private lenders under our securitization programs, of which $2.1 billion was committed and $450 million was
uncommitted. We also have other unencumbered assets in the Bank available to be used to generate additional liquidity through secured borrowings or asset
sales or to be pledged to the Federal Reserve Board for credit at the discount window.
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We rely significantly on dividends and other distributions and payments from the Bank for liquidity; however, bank regulations, contractual restrictions and other
factors limit the amount of dividends and other distributions and payments that the Bank may pay to us. For a discussion of regulatory restrictions related to the
Bank’s ability to pay dividends, see “Regulation—Risk Factors Relating to Regulation—We are subject to restrictions that limit our ability to pay dividends and
repurchase our common stock; the Bank is subject to restrictions that limit its ability to pay dividends to us, which could limit our ability to pay dividends,
repurchase our common stock or make payments on our indebtedness,” “Regulation—Regulation Relating to Our Business—Savings Association Regulation—
Dividends and Stock Repurchases” and —Liquidity," and Regulation—Savings and Loan Holding Company Regulation—Liquidity" in our 2024 Form 10-K.

Capital
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Our primary sources of capital have been earnings generated by our business and existing equity capital. We seek to manage capital to a level and
composition sufficient to support the risks of our business, meet regulatory requirements, adhere to rating agency targets and support future business growth.
The level, composition and utilization of capital are influenced by changes in the economic environment, strategic initiatives and legislative and regulatory
developments. Within these constraints, we are focused on deploying capital in a manner that will provide attractive returns to our stockholders.

We are subject to the Federal Reserve Board's formal capital plan submission requirements and submitted our 2025 capital plan to the Federal Reserve Board.
We are also now subject to supervisory stress tests on a biennial basis, in even calendar years, and currently expect that the 2026 supervisory stress test is the
first stress test in which we will be required to participate.

Dividend and Share Repurchases

Common Stock Cash Dividends Declared Month of Payment
Amount per Common

Share Amount
Three months ended ($ in millions, except per share data)
March 31, 2025 February 2025 $ 0.25  $ 97 
June 30, 2025 May 2025 0.30  114 
September 30, 2025 August 2025 0.30  110 
Total dividends declared $ 0.85  $ 321 

Series A Series B

Preferred Stock Cash Dividends Declared Month of Payment
Amount per

Preferred Share Amount
Amount per

Preferred Share Amount
Three months ended ($ in millions, except per share data)
March 31, 2025 February 2025 $ 14.06  $ 11  $ 20.63  $ 10 
June 30, 2025 May 2025 14.06  10  20.63  11 
September 30, 2025 August 2025 14.06  10  20.63  10 
Total dividends declared $ 42.18  $ 31  $ 61.89  $ 31 

The declaration and payment of future dividends to holders of our common and preferred stock will be at the discretion of the Board and will depend on many
factors. In addition, subject to approval from the Board, we have the ability to issue further series of preferred stock, up to a maximum of 300 million shares
authorized for issuance.

For a discussion of regulatory and other restrictions on our ability to pay dividends and repurchase stock, see “Regulation—Risk Factors Relating to Regulation
—We are subject to restrictions that limit our ability to pay dividends and repurchase our common stock; the Bank is subject to restrictions that limit its ability to
pay dividends to us, which could limit our ability to pay dividends, repurchase our common stock or make payments on our indebtedness” in our 2024 Form 10-
K.
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Common Shares Repurchased Under Publicly Announced Programs
Total Number of Shares

Purchased
Dollar Value of Shares

Purchased
Three months ended ($ and shares in millions)
March 31, 2025 9.8  $ 600 
June 30, 2025 8.8  500 
September 30, 2025 12.1  861 
Total 30.7  $ 1,961 

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, we repurchased $2.0 billion of common stock as part of our share repurchase program. In April 2025, we
announced that the Board approved a share repurchase program of up to $2.5 billion through June 30, 2026. In September 2025, the Board approved an
incremental share repurchase authorization of up to $1.0 billion, through June 30, 2026 (collectively with the April 2025 program, the "2025 program"). At
September 30, 2025, the Company had a total remaining share repurchase authorization of $2.1 billion under the 2025 program. Repurchases under this
program are subject to market conditions and other factors, including legal and regulatory restrictions and required approvals, if any.

Regulatory Capital Requirements - Synchrony Financial

As a savings and loan holding company, we are required to maintain minimum capital ratios, under the applicable U.S. Basel III capital rules. For more
information, see “Regulation—Savings and Loan Holding Company Regulation” in our 2024 Form 10-K.

For Synchrony Financial to be a well-capitalized savings and loan holding company, Synchrony Bank must be well-capitalized and Synchrony Financial must
not be subject to any written agreement, order, capital directive, or prompt corrective action directive issued by the Federal Reserve Board to meet and maintain
a specific capital level for any capital measure. At September 30, 2025, Synchrony Financial met all the requirements to be deemed well-capitalized.

The following table sets forth the composition of our capital ratios for the Company calculated under the Basel III Standardized Approach rules at
September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

Basel III
  At September 30, 2025 At December 31, 2024
($ in millions) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total risk-based capital $ 17,260  16.9 % $ 17,407  16.5 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital $ 15,132  14.9 % $ 15,239  14.5 %
Tier 1 leverage $ 15,132  13.0 % $ 15,239  12.9 %
Common equity Tier 1 capital $ 13,910  13.7 % $ 14,017  13.3 %
Risk-weighted assets $ 101,884  $ 105,417 

______________________

(1) Tier 1 leverage ratio represents total Tier 1 capital as a percentage of total average assets, after certain adjustments. All other ratios presented above represent the
applicable capital measure as a percentage of risk-weighted assets.

The Company elected to adopt the option provided by the interim final rule issued by joint federal bank regulatory agencies, which largely delayed the effects of
CECL on our regulatory capital. The effects were phased-in over a three-year transitional period through 2024, collectively the “CECL regulatory capital
transition adjustment”. The effects of CECL on our regulatory capital were fully phased-in beginning in the first quarter of 2025. For more information, see
“Capital—Regulatory Capital Requirements - Synchrony Financial” in our 2024 Form 10-K.

Capital amounts and ratios in the above table reflect the applicable CECL regulatory capital transition adjustment at December 31, 2024. The increase in our
common equity Tier 1 capital ratio compared to December 31, 2024 was primarily due to a reduction in risk-weighted assets related to the decrease in loan
receivables during the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and the retention of net earnings during the same period, partially offset by the final phase-in of
the CECL regulatory capital transition adjustment.

(1) (1)
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Regulatory Capital Requirements - Synchrony Bank

At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Bank met all applicable requirements to be deemed well-capitalized pursuant to the Office of the
Comptroller of the Currency of the U.S. Treasury (the “OCC”) regulations and for purposes of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. The following table sets forth
the composition of the Bank’s capital ratios calculated under the Basel III Standardized Approach rules at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, and
also reflects the applicable CECL regulatory capital transition adjustment at December 31, 2024.

  At September 30, 2025 At December 31, 2024

Minimum to be Well-
Capitalized under Prompt

Corrective Action Provisions
($ in millions) Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Ratio
Total risk-based capital $ 16,007  16.5 % $ 15,916  15.8 % 10.0%
Tier 1 risk-based capital $ 13,931  14.3 % $ 13,805  13.7 % 8.0%
Tier 1 leverage $ 13,931  12.6 % $ 13,805  12.4 % 5.0%
Common equity Tier 1 capital $ 13,931  14.3 % $ 13,805  13.7 % 6.5%

Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can result in the initiation of certain mandatory and possibly additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if
undertaken, could limit our business activities and have a material adverse effect on our business, results of operations and financial condition. See “Regulation
—Risk Factors Relating to Regulation—Failure by Synchrony and the Bank to meet applicable capital adequacy and liquidity requirements could have a
material adverse effect on us” in our 2024 Form 10-K.

Off-Balance Sheet Arrangements and Unfunded Lending Commitments
____________________________________________________________________________________________

We do not have any material off-balance sheet arrangements, including guarantees of third-party obligations. Guarantees are contracts or indemnification
agreements that contingently require us to make a guaranteed payment or perform an obligation to a third-party based on certain trigger events. At
September 30, 2025, we had not recorded any contingent liabilities in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position related to any guarantees.
See Note 6 - Variable Interest Entities to our condensed consolidated financial statements for more information on our investment commitments for
unconsolidated variable interest entities.

We extend credit, primarily arising from agreements with customers for unused lines of credit on our credit cards, in the ordinary course of business. Each
unused credit card line is unconditionally cancellable by us. See Note 5 - Loan Receivables and Allowance for Credit Losses to our condensed consolidated
financial statements for more information on our unfunded lending commitments.
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Critical Accounting Estimates
____________________________________________________________________________________________

In preparing our condensed consolidated financial statements, we have identified certain accounting estimates and assumptions that we consider to be the
most critical to an understanding of our financial statements because they involve significant judgments and uncertainties. The critical accounting estimates we
have identified relate to allowance for credit losses and fair value measurements. These estimates reflect our best judgment about current, and for some
estimates future, economic and market conditions and their effects based on information available as of the date of these financial statements. If these
conditions change from those expected, it is reasonably possible that these judgments and estimates could change, which may result in incremental losses on
loan receivables, or material changes to our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position, among other effects. See below and “Management's
Discussion and Analysis—Critical Accounting Estimates” in our 2024 Form 10-K, for a detailed discussion of these critical accounting estimates.

Allowance for Credit Losses

Change in methodology for Allowance for Credit Losses

At September 30, 2025, our Allowance for Credit Losses reflects changes we made during the three months ended March 31, 2025 to our methodology related
to the modeling of loss projections attributable to existing loan balances and the reversion to historical mean. Our updated loss forecasting methodology utilizes
a statistical, account-level model that analyzes probability of default and exposure at default for our loan receivables, as compared to our prior methodology
which utilized an enhanced migration analysis to estimate credit losses. Our reversion methodology, which continues to be applied over a 6-month period, also
changed from the prior weighted approach used since the adoption of CECL to apply a straight-line methodology. These changes in methodology were made
prospectively to enhance our expected credit loss estimation capabilities and did not have a material effect on our Allowance for Credit Losses in the period of
implementation.

For periods presented prior to March 31, 2025, the Allowance for Credit Losses reflects the methodology utilized prior to these changes. See our 2024 Form 10-
K for additional information on the prior methodology for our Allowance for Credit Losses, and see below for additional information on the updated methodology
reflected in the Allowance for Credit Losses at September 30, 2025.

Allowance for Credit Losses

Our Allowance for Credit Losses represents our best estimate of expected credit losses for the life of the loan balance as of the period end date. Expected
credit loss estimates involve modeling loss projections attributable to existing loan balances, considering historical experience, current conditions and future
expectations for pools of loans with similar risk characteristics, such as retailer, performance and credit attributes, over the reasonable and supportable forecast
period and considers historical loss information beyond the reasonable and supportable period.

We use a probability of default and exposure at default model to estimate the expected loan loss, which considers uncollectible principal, interest and fees
reflected in the loan receivables, segmented into pools of loans with similar risk characteristics, as well as individual credit characteristics for each account. Our
probability of default estimates the likelihood an account will be written off and the exposure at default estimates the balance of an account at the time of write-
off. The model considers a macroeconomic forecast, with unemployment and certain income measures as primary variables. We also perform a qualitative
assessment in addition to model estimates and apply qualitative adjustments as necessary.

Our estimation process includes analysis of historical data, and there is a significant amount of judgment applied in selecting and adjusting inputs, as well as
analyzing the results produced by the model estimates used to determine the Allowance for Credit Losses. Key factors that impact the accuracy of our loss
forecast estimates include the models and methodology utilized, credit strategy and trends, and consideration of material changes in our loan portfolio such as
changes in growth and portfolio mix.
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Our estimate of expected credit losses utilizes a reasonable and supportable forecast period of 12 months, consistent with the forecast period utilized since
adoption of CECL. The reasonable and supportable forecast period is determined primarily based upon an assessment of the current economic outlook,
including our ability to use available data to accurately forecast losses over time. Beyond the reasonable and supportable forecast period, we revert to historical
loss information at the loan receivables segment level over a 6-month period on a straight-line basis and utilize historical loss information thereafter for the
remaining life of the portfolio. The historical loss information is derived from a combination of recessionary and non-recessionary performance periods,
weighted by the estimated time span of each period. Additionally, the estimate of expected credit losses includes expected recoveries of amounts previously
charged-off and expected to be charged-off.

The life of a credit card loan receivable is dependent upon the allocation of payments received, as well as a variety of other factors, including the principal
balance, promotional terms, interest charges and fees and overall consumer credit profile and usage pattern. To determine the expected credit losses for credit
card loan receivables as of the measurement date our estimate considers the payments attributable to the measurement date balance. To do so, we utilize an
approach which implicitly considers total expected future payments and applies appropriate allocations to reduce those payments in order to estimate losses
pertaining to measurement date loan receivables. Based on our payments analyses, we also ensure that expected future payments from an account do not
exceed the measurement date balance.

Further, when historical experience is not available for new portfolios, while we accumulate experience, we may utilize our experience with the most closely
analogous products and segments in our portfolio. The underlying assumptions, estimates and assessments we use to provide for losses are updated
periodically to reflect our view of current and forecasted conditions and are subject to the regulatory examination process, which can result in changes to our
assumptions. Changes in such estimates can significantly affect the allowance and provision for credit losses. It is possible that we will experience credit losses
that are different from our current estimates.
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Regulation and Supervision
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Our business, including our relationships with our customers, is subject to regulation, supervision and examination under U.S. federal, state and foreign laws
and regulations. These laws and regulations cover all aspects of our business, including lending and collection practices, treatment of our customers,
safeguarding deposits, customer privacy and information security, capital structure, liquidity, dividends and other capital distributions, transactions with affiliates,
and conduct and qualifications of personnel. Such laws and regulations directly and indirectly affect key drivers of our profitability, including, for example, capital
and liquidity, product offerings, risk management, and costs of compliance.

As a savings and loan holding company and a financial holding company, Synchrony is subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Federal
Reserve Board. As a large provider of consumer financial services, we are also subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the CFPB.

The Bank is a federally chartered savings association. As such, the Bank is subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the OCC, which is its primary
regulator, and by the CFPB. In addition, the Bank, as an insured depository institution, is supervised by the FDIC.

On October 24, 2023, the Federal Reserve, FDIC, and OCC issued a final rule revising their framework for evaluating banks’ records of community
reinvestment under the Community Reinvestment Act (“CRA”). On July 16, 2025, these bank regulatory agencies issued a proposal to rescind the October
2023 final rule and reinstate the CRA framework that existed prior to the October 2023 final rule. The Bank received a rating of “Outstanding” in its most recent
performance evaluation, which was conducted using the CRA framework that existed prior to the October 2023 final rule.

On March 5, 2024, the CFPB released a final rule amending its regulations that implement the Truth in Lending Act to lower the safe harbor dollar amount for
credit card late fees from the prior $30 (adjusted to $41 for each subsequent late payment within the next six billing cycles) to $8 and to eliminate the automatic
annual inflation adjustment to such safe harbor dollar amount. The final rule had an original effective date of May 14, 2024. Industry organizations challenged
the final rule in court, and on May 10, 2024, the United States District Court for the Northern District of Texas granted an injunction and stay of the final rule. On
April 14, 2025, the CFPB filed a joint motion with the plaintiff industry organizations in the litigation asking the court to vacate the final rule and dismiss the case.
On April 15, 2025, the court granted this motion. As such, the final rule has been vacated.

On September 17, 2024, the OCC finalized a new Policy Statement Regarding Statutory Factors Under the Bank Merger Act (the “Policy Statement”), which
updated the factors the OCC would apply in evaluating a proposed bank merger transaction. The Policy Statement could have potentially made it more difficult
and/or costly for us to obtain OCC approval for an acquisition or otherwise resulted in more onerous conditions in approval orders than the OCC had previously
imposed. On May 8, 2025, the OCC rescinded the Policy Statement.

On October 22, 2024, the CFPB issued a final rule to implement Section 1033 of the Dodd-Frank Act. Under the final rule, financial institutions such as the Bank
that offer credit cards or consumer deposit accounts would be required, upon request, to make available to a consumer or third party authorized by the
consumer certain information the Bank has concerning a consumer financial product or service covered by the rule, such as a credit card or a deposit account.
Industry organizations challenged the final rule in court. On July 29, 2025, the district court granted a motion by the CFPB to stay the proceedings while the
CFPB conducts a rulemaking to revise the final rule substantially. On August 22, 2025, the CFPB issued an advanced notice of proposed rulemaking to solicit
comments and data on several issues relating to the final rule.

See “Regulation—Regulation Relating to Our Business” in our 2024 Form 10-K for additional information on regulations that apply to us, and “—Capital” above,
for discussion of the impact of regulations and supervision on our capital and liquidity, including our ability to pay dividends and repurchase stock.
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ITEM 1. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Synchrony Financial and subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings (Unaudited)
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions, except per share data) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Interest income:

Interest and fees on loans (Note 5) $ 5,510  $ 5,522  $ 16,150  $ 16,116 
Interest on cash and debt securities 221  263  717  819 

Total interest income 5,731  5,785  16,867  16,935 
Interest expense:

Interest on deposits 812  968  2,549  2,889 
Interest on borrowings of consolidated securitization entities 105  108  313  323 
Interest on senior and subordinated unsecured notes 94  100  300  304 

Total interest expense 1,011  1,176  3,162  3,516 
Net interest income 4,720  4,609  13,705  13,419 

Retailer share arrangements (1,024) (914) (2,911) (2,488)
Provision for credit losses (Note 5) 1,146  1,597  3,783  5,172 

Net interest income, after retailer share arrangements and provision for
credit losses 2,550  2,098  7,011  5,759 

Other income:
Interchange revenue 272  256  778  760 
Protection product revenue 149  145  440  411 
Loyalty programs (368) (346) (1,039) (1,011)
Other (Note 3) 74  64  215  1,233 

Total other income 127  119  394  1,393 
Other expense:

Employee costs 503  464  1,518  1,394 
Professional fees 240  231  693  687 
Marketing and business development 120  123  363  377 
Information processing 226  203  660  596 
Other 159  168  502  518 

Total other expense 1,248  1,189  3,736  3,572 
Earnings before provision for income taxes 1,429  1,028  3,669  3,580 
Provision for income taxes (Note 13) 352  239  868  855 
Net earnings $ 1,077  $ 789  $ 2,801  $ 2,725 

Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 1,057  $ 768  $ 2,739  $ 2,674 

Earnings per share (Note 12)
Basic $ 2.89  $ 1.96  $ 7.29  $ 6.71 
Diluted $ 2.86  $ 1.94  $ 7.22  $ 6.65 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Synchrony Financial and subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Comprehensive Income (Unaudited)
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024

Net earnings $ 1,077  $ 789  $ 2,801  $ 2,725 

Other comprehensive income (loss)
Debt securities 4  21  15  20 
Currency translation adjustments (5) 3  (1) (1)
Employee benefit plans and other —  (1) (1) (1)

Other comprehensive income (loss) (1) 23  13  18 

Comprehensive income $ 1,076  $ 812  $ 2,814  $ 2,743 

Amounts presented net of taxes.

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Synchrony Financial and subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position (Unaudited)
____________________________________________________________________________________________
($ in millions) At September 30, 2025 At December 31, 2024
Assets
Cash and equivalents $ 16,245  $ 14,711 
Debt securities (Note 4) 2,716  3,079 
Loan receivables: (Notes 5 and 6)

Unsecuritized loans held for investment 79,207  83,382 
Restricted loans of consolidated securitization entities 20,971  21,339 

Total loan receivables 100,178  104,721 
Less: Allowance for credit losses (10,373) (10,929)

Loan receivables, net 89,805  93,792 
Loan receivables held for sale (Note 5) 192  — 
Goodwill 1,274  1,274 
Intangible assets, net (Note 7) 909  854 
Other assets 5,843  5,753 

Total assets $ 116,984  $ 119,463 

Liabilities and Equity
Deposits: (Note 8)

Interest-bearing deposit accounts $ 79,513  $ 81,664 
Non-interest-bearing deposit accounts 373  398 

Total deposits 79,886  82,062 
Borrowings: (Notes 6 and 9)

Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities 7,666  7,842 
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes 6,765  7,620 

Total borrowings 14,431  15,462 
Accrued expenses and other liabilities 5,602  5,359 

Total liabilities $ 99,919  $ 102,883 
Equity:

Preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share; 1,250,000 shares authorized, issued and outstanding;
and aggregate liquidation preference of $1,250 at both September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024 $ 1,222  $ 1,222 
Common stock, par value $0.001 per share; 4,000,000,000 shares authorized; 833,984,684 shares
issued at both September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024; 360,143,330 and 388,261,077 shares
outstanding at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively 1  1 
Additional paid-in capital 9,866  9,853 
Retained earnings 23,978  21,635 
Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss):

Debt securities (8) (23)
Currency translation adjustments (45) (44)
Employee benefit plans and other 7  8 

Treasury stock, at cost; 473,841,354 and 445,723,607 shares at September 30, 2025 and December 31,
2024, respectively (17,956) (16,072)

Total equity 17,065  16,580 
Total liabilities and equity $ 116,984  $ 119,463 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Synchrony Financial and subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity (Unaudited)
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Preferred Stock Common Stock

($ in millions,
shares in thousands)

Shares
Issued Amount

Shares
Issued Amount

Additional
Paid-in Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Treasury
Stock Total Equity

Balance at
January 1, 2024 750  $ 734  833,985  $ 1  $ 9,775  $ 18,662  $ (68) $ (15,201) $ 13,903 
Net earnings —  —  —  —  —  1,293  —  —  1,293 
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  —  —  (1) —  (1)
Issuance of preferred stock 500 488 —  —  —  —  —  —  488 
Purchases of treasury stock —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (300) (300)
Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  (7) (52) —  71  12 
Dividends - Series A preferred
stock
($14.06 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (11) —  —  (11)
Dividends - common stock
($0.25 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (102) —  —  (102)
Balance at
March 31, 2024 1,250  $ 1,222  833,985  $ 1  $ 9,768  $ 19,790  $ (69) $ (15,430) $ 15,282 
Net earnings —  —  —  —  —  643  —  —  643 
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  —  —  (4) —  (4)
Purchases of treasury stock —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (305) (305)
Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  25  (4) —  22  43 
Dividends - Series A preferred
stock
($14.06 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (10) —  —  (10)
Dividends - Series B preferred
stock ($18.79 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (9) —  —  (9)
Dividends - common stock
($0.25 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (100) —  —  (100)
Balance at
June 30, 2024 1,250  $ 1,222  833,985  $ 1  $ 9,793  $ 20,310  $ (73) $ (15,713) $ 15,540 
Net earnings —  —  —  —  —  789  —  —  789 
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  —  —  23  —  23 
Purchases of treasury stock —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (302) (302)
Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  29  (4) —  25  50 
Dividends - Series A preferred
stock
($14.06 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (11) —  —  (11)
Dividends - Series B preferred
stock ($20.63 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (10) —  —  (10)
Dividends - common stock
($0.25 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (99) —  —  (99)
Balance at
September 30, 2024 1,250  $ 1,222  833,985  $ 1  $ 9,822  $ 20,975  $ (50) $ (15,990) $ 15,980 
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Preferred Stock Common Stock

($ in millions,
shares in thousands)

Shares
Issued Amount

Shares
Issued Amount

Additional
Paid-in Capital

Retained
Earnings

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income (Loss)

Treasury
Stock Total Equity

Balance at
January 1, 2025 1,250  $ 1,222  833,985  $ 1  $ 9,853  $ 21,635  $ (59) $ (16,072) $ 16,580 
Net earnings —  —  —  —  —  757  —  —  757 
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  —  —  6  —  6 
Purchases of treasury stock —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (605) (605)
Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  (49) (65) —  75  (39)
Dividends - Series A preferred
stock
($14.06 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (11) —  —  (11)
Dividends - Series B preferred
stock ($20.63 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (10) —  —  (10)
Dividends - common stock
($0.25 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (97) —  —  (97)
Balance at
March 31, 2025 1,250  $ 1,222  833,985  $ 1  $ 9,804  $ 22,209  $ (53) $ (16,602) $ 16,581 
Net earnings —  —  —  —  —  967  —  —  967 
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  —  —  8  —  8 
Purchases of treasury stock —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (504) (504)
Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  32  (5) —  8  35 
Dividends - Series A preferred
stock
($14.06 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (10) —  —  (10)
Dividends - Series B preferred
stock
($20.63 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (11) —  —  (11)
Dividends - common stock
($0.30 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (114) —  —  (114)
Balance at
June 30, 2025 1,250  $ 1,222  833,985  $ 1  $ 9,836  $ 23,036  $ (45) $ (17,098) $ 16,952 
Net earnings —  —  —  —  —  1,077  —  —  1,077 
Other comprehensive income —  —  —  —  —  —  (1) —  (1)
Purchases of treasury stock —  —  —  —  —  —  —  (870) (870)
Stock-based compensation —  —  —  —  30  (5) —  12  37 
Dividends - Series A preferred
stock
($14.06 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (10) —  —  (10)
Dividends - Series B preferred
stock ($20.63 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (10) —  —  (10)
Dividends - common stock
($0.30 per share) —  —  —  —  —  (110) —  —  (110)
Balance at
September 30, 2025 1,250  $ 1,222  833,985  $ 1  $ 9,866  $ 23,978  $ (46) $ (17,956) $ 17,065 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Synchrony Financial and subsidiaries
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows (Unaudited)
____________________________________________________________________________________________

Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024
Cash flows - operating activities
Net earnings $ 2,801  $ 2,725 
Adjustments to reconcile net earnings to cash provided from operating activities

Provision for credit losses 3,783  5,172 
Deferred income taxes 171  (80)
Depreciation and amortization 375  361 
Gain on sale of business —  (1,069)
All other operating activities 358  353 

Changes in operating assets and liabilities, net of effects of acquisitions and dispositions
(Increase) decrease in interest and fees receivable (271) 230 
(Increase) decrease in other assets 114  (5)
Increase (decrease) in accrued expenses and other liabilities 66  (192)

Cash provided from (used for) operating activities 7,397  7,495 

Cash flows - investing activities
Maturity and sales of debt securities 1,571  2,961 
Purchases of debt securities (1,177) (1,422)
Acquisitions, net of cash acquired —  (1,935)
Proceeds from sale of business, net of cash and restricted cash sold —  491 
Net (increase) decrease in loan receivables, including held for sale 183  (3,545)
All other investing activities (789) (490)
Cash provided from (used for) investing activities (212) (3,940)

Cash flows - financing activities
Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities

Proceeds from issuance of securitized debt 1,495  1,694 
Maturities and repayment of securitized debt (1,675) (950)

Senior and subordinated unsecured notes
Proceeds from issuance of senior and subordinated unsecured notes 1,788  745 
Maturities and repayment of senior and subordinated unsecured notes (2,650) (1,850)

Proceeds from issuance of preferred stock —  488 
Dividends paid on preferred stock (62) (51)
Net increase (decrease) in deposits (2,182) 1,120 
Purchases of treasury stock (1,979) (907)
Dividends paid on common stock (321) (301)
All other financing activities (67) 18 
Cash provided from (used for) financing activities (5,653) 6 

Increase (decrease) in cash and equivalents, including restricted amounts 1,532  3,561 
Cash and equivalents, including restricted amounts, at beginning of period 14,755  14,420 
Cash and equivalents at end of period:

Cash and equivalents 16,245  17,934 
Restricted cash and equivalents included in other assets 42  47 

Total cash and equivalents, including restricted amounts, at end of period $ 16,287  $ 17,981 

See accompanying notes to condensed consolidated financial statements.
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Synchrony Financial and subsidiaries
Notes to Condensed Consolidated Financial Statements (Unaudited)
____________________________________________________________________________________________

NOTE 1.    BUSINESS DESCRIPTION

Synchrony Financial (the “Company”) provides a range of credit products through financing programs it has established with a diverse group of national and
regional retailers, local merchants, manufacturers, buying groups, industry associations and healthcare service providers. We primarily offer private label, Dual
Card, co-brand and general purpose credit cards, as well as short- and long-term installment loans, and savings products insured by the Federal Deposit
Insurance Corporation (“FDIC”) through Synchrony Bank (the “Bank”). We conduct our operations through a single business segment. See Note 14. Segment
Reporting for additional information.

References to the “Company”, “we”, “us” and “our” are to Synchrony Financial and its consolidated subsidiaries unless the context otherwise requires.

NOTE 2.    BASIS OF PRESENTATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Basis of Presentation

The accompanying condensed consolidated financial statements were prepared in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”).

Preparing financial statements in conformity with U.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates based on assumptions about current, and for some estimates,
future, economic and market conditions (for example, unemployment, interest rates and market liquidity) which affect reported amounts and related disclosures
in our condensed consolidated financial statements. Although our current estimates contemplate current conditions and how we expect them to change in the
future, as appropriate, it is reasonably possible that actual conditions could be different than anticipated in those estimates, which could materially affect our
results of operations and financial position. Among other effects, such changes could result in incremental losses on loan receivables, future impairments of
debt securities, goodwill and intangible assets, increases in reserves for contingencies, establishment of valuation allowances on deferred tax assets and
increases in our tax liabilities.

We primarily conduct our business within the United States and substantially all of our revenues are from U.S. customers. The operating activities conducted by
our non-U.S. affiliates use the local currency as their functional currency. The effects of translating the financial statements of these non-U.S. affiliates to U.S.
dollars are included in equity. Asset and liability accounts are translated at period-end exchange rates, while revenues and expenses are translated at average
rates for the respective periods.

Consolidated Basis of Presentation

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a consolidated basis. Under this basis of presentation, our financial statements consolidate all of
our subsidiaries – i.e., entities in which we have a controlling financial interest, most often because we hold a majority voting interest. To determine if we hold a
controlling financial interest in an entity, we first evaluate if we are required to apply the variable interest entity (“VIE”) model to the entity, otherwise the entity is
evaluated under the voting interest model. We consolidate certain securitization entities under the VIE model because we have both power to direct and
significant economics, primarily because of Synchrony or the Bank's role as servicer. See Note 6. Variable Interest Entities.
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Interim Period Presentation

The condensed consolidated financial statements and notes thereto are unaudited. These statements include all adjustments (consisting of normal recurring
accruals) that we considered necessary to present a fair statement of our results of operations, financial position and cash flows. The results reported in these
condensed consolidated financial statements should not be considered as necessarily indicative of results that may be expected for the entire year. These
condensed consolidated financial statements should be read in conjunction with our 2024 annual consolidated financial statements and the related notes in our
Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2024 (our "2024 Form 10-K").

New Accounting Standards

Recently Issued But Not Yet Adopted Accounting Standards

In December 2023, the FASB issued ASU 2023-09, Income Taxes (Topic 740): Improvements to Income Tax Disclosures. This ASU requires disclosure of
specific categories in the rate reconciliation, as well as additional qualitative information about the reconciliation, and additional disaggregated information about
income taxes paid. The Company will adopt this guidance on a retrospective basis on its effective date, which for us is beginning within our December 31, 2025
Form 10-K. Management does not expect this guidance to have a material impact on the Consolidated Financial Statements.

In November 2024, the FASB issued ASU 2024-03, Income Statement – Reporting Comprehensive Income – Expense Disaggregation Disclosures (Subtopic
220-40). This ASU requires disaggregated information about certain income statement line items in a tabular format in the notes to the financial statements. The
Company will adopt this guidance on its effective date, which for us is beginning within our December 31, 2027 Form 10-K, and is currently determining the
method of adoption, however, it is not expected to have a material impact on our Consolidated Financial Statements.

In September 2025, the FASB issued ASU 2025-06, Intangibles – Goodwill and Other – Internal-Use Software (Subtopic 350-40). This ASU amends certain
aspects of the accounting for and disclosure of software costs. This ASU requires an entity to start capitalizing software costs when both management has
authorized and committed to funding the software project, and it is probable that the project will be completed and the software will be used to perform the
function intended. The amendments in this update are effective for the Company beginning in January 2028, through either a prospective, modified, or
retrospective transition approach, with early adoption permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the updated guidance to assess the impact and the
method of adoption.

Allowance for Credit Losses

Changes in methodology for Allowance for Credit Losses

At September 30, 2025, our Allowance for Credit Losses reflects changes we made during the three months ended March 31, 2025 to our methodology related
to the modeling of loss projections attributable to existing loan balances and the reversion to historical mean. Our updated loss forecasting methodology utilizes
a statistical, account-level model that analyzes probability of default and exposure at default for our loan receivables, as compared to our prior methodology
which utilized an enhanced migration analysis to estimate credit losses. Our reversion methodology, which continues to be applied over a 6-month period, also
changed from the prior weighted approach used since the adoption of CECL to apply a straight-line methodology. These changes in methodology were made
prospectively to enhance our expected credit loss estimation capabilities and did not have a material effect on our Allowance for Credit Losses in the period of
implementation.

For periods presented prior to March 31, 2025, the Allowance for Credit Losses reflects the methodology utilized prior to these changes. See 2024 Form 10-K
for additional information on the prior methodology for our Allowance for Credit Losses, and see below for additional information on the updated methodology
reflected in the Allowance for Credit Losses at September 30, 2025.
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Losses on loan receivables are estimated and recognized upon origination of the loan, and updated based on expected credit losses for the life of the loan
balance at the period end date. Expected credit loss estimates involve modeling loss projections attributable to existing loan balances, considering historical
experience, current conditions and future expectations for pools of loans with similar risk characteristics, such as retailer, performance and credit attributes,
over the reasonable and supportable forecast period and considers historical loss information beyond the reasonable and supportable period.

We use a probability of default and exposure at default model to estimate the expected loan loss, which considers uncollectible principal, interest and fees
reflected in the loan receivables, segmented into pools of loans with similar risk characteristics, as well as individual credit characteristics for each account. The
model considers a macroeconomic forecast, with unemployment and certain income measures as primary variables. We also perform a qualitative assessment
in addition to model estimates and apply qualitative adjustments as necessary.

We evaluate our Allowance for Credit Losses quarterly. Our estimation process includes analysis of historical data, and there is a significant amount of
judgment applied in selecting and adjusting inputs as well as analyzing the results produced by the model estimates used to determine the Allowance for Credit
Losses. Other data utilized in our estimate of expected losses, includes past performance, changes in underwriting policies, bankruptcy activity such as filings
and loan volumes and amounts. We also evaluate portfolio risk management techniques applied to various accounts, historical behavior of different account
vintages, account seasoning, economic conditions, recent trends in delinquencies and net charge-offs, account collection management including the impact of
modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulties, forecasting uncertainties, expectations about the future and a qualitative assessment of the
adequacy of the allowance for credit losses. Additionally, the estimate of expected credit losses includes expected recoveries of amounts previously charged-off
and expected to be charged-off.

Our credit card loan receivables generally do not have a stated life. The life of a credit card loan receivable is dependent upon the allocation of payments
received, as well as a variety of other factors, including the principal balance, promotional terms, interest charges and fees and overall consumer credit profile
and usage pattern. We determine the expected credit losses for credit card loan receivables as of the measurement date by using an estimated probability of
default and exposure at default model, and other historical analyses, which considers the payments attributable to the measurement date balance. To do so, we
utilize an approach which implicitly considers total expected future payments and applies appropriate allocations to reduce those payments in order to estimate
losses pertaining to measurement date loan receivables. Based on our payments analyses, we also ensure that expected future payments from an account do
not exceed the measurement date balance.

The reasonable and supportable forecast period is determined primarily based upon an assessment of the current economic outlook, including our ability to use
available data to accurately forecast losses over time. The reasonable and supportable forecast period used in our estimate of credit losses at September 30,
2025 was 12 months, consistent with the forecast period utilized since adoption of CECL. The Company reassesses the reasonable and supportable forecast
period on a quarterly basis. Beyond the reasonable and supportable forecast period, we revert to historical loss information at the loan receivables segment
level over a 6-month period on a straight-line basis, and utilize historical loss information thereafter for the remaining life of the portfolio. The historical loss
information is derived from a combination of recessionary and non-recessionary performance periods, weighted by the estimated time span of each period.
Similar to the reasonable and supportable forecast period, we also reassess the reversion period and historical mean on a quarterly basis, considering any
required adjustments for differences in underwriting standards, portfolio mix, and other relevant data shifts over time.

The underlying assumptions, estimates and assessments we use to provide for losses are updated periodically to reflect our view of current and forecasted
conditions, and are subject to the regulatory examination process, which can result in changes to our assumptions. Changes in such estimates can significantly
affect the allowance and provision for credit losses. It is possible that we will experience credit losses that are different from our current estimates. Consistent
with our other assumptions, we also review segmentation to determine whether the segmentation pools remain relevant as risk characteristics change.

Charge-offs are deducted from the allowance for credit losses and are recorded in the period when we judge the principal to be uncollectible, and subsequent
recoveries are added to the allowance, generally at the time cash is received on a charged-off account.
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Delinquent receivables are those that are 30 days or more past due based on their contractual payments. Non-accrual loan receivables are those on which we
have stopped accruing interest. We typically continue to accrue interest until the earlier of the time at which collection of an account becomes doubtful, or in the
period the account becomes 180 days past due, with the exception of non-credit card accounts, for which we stop accruing interest in the period that the
account becomes 90 days past due.

The same loan receivable may meet more than one of the definitions above. Accordingly, these categories are not mutually exclusive, and it is possible for a
particular loan to meet the definitions of a non-accrual loan and a delinquent loan, or be modified to a borrower experiencing financial difficulty, and be included
in each of these categories. The categorization of a particular loan also may not necessarily be indicative of the potential for loss.

See Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to our 2024 annual consolidated financial statements in our 2024 Form 10-
K, for additional information on our other significant accounting policies.

NOTE 3.    ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Ally Lending

On March 1, 2024, we acquired Ally Financial Inc.'s point of sale financing business, ("Ally Lending") for cash consideration of $2.0 billion. This acquisition
deepened our presence and reach in the home improvement and health and wellness sectors, including high-growth specialty areas such as roofing, HVAC,
and windows, as well as in cosmetic, audiology, and dentistry. The acquisition primarily included loan receivables with an unpaid principal balance of
$2.2 billion.

Pets Best

In March 2024, we sold our wholly-owned subsidiary, Pets Best Insurance Services, LLC (“Pets Best”) to Poodle Holdings, Inc. (“Buyer”) for consideration
comprising a combination of cash and an equity interest of less than 10% in Independence Pet Holdings, Inc., ("IPH") an affiliate of Buyer. The sale of Pets Best
resulted in the recognition of a gain on sale of $1.1 billion or $802 million, net of tax in the three months ended March 31, 2024. The pre-tax gain amount has
been recognized within the Other component of Other income in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings.

The Company’s initial equity investment in IPH was recorded in Other assets on our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position and is
accounted for under the equity method of accounting. The investment was recorded at its estimated fair value at the date acquired of $605 million. The change
in the carrying value of our equity investment in IPH subsequent to the date acquired was not material.

See Note 3. Acquisitions and Dispositions to our 2024 annual consolidated financial statements in our 2024 Form 10-K, for additional information on both the
Ally Lending and Pets Best transactions completed in the prior year.
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NOTE 4.    DEBT SECURITIES

All of our debt securities are classified as available-for-sale and are held to meet our liquidity objectives or to comply with the Community Reinvestment Act
(“CRA”). Our debt securities consist of the following:

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Gross Gross Gross Gross

Amortized unrealized unrealized Estimated Amortized unrealized unrealized Estimated
 ($ in millions) cost gains losses fair value cost gains losses fair value
U.S. government and federal agency $ 1,699  $ 8  $ —  $ 1,707  $ 1,841  $ 3  $ —  $ 1,844 
State and municipal 26  —  —  26  17  —  (1) 16 
Residential mortgage-backed 336  —  (24) 312  324  —  (35) 289 
Asset-backed 657  5  —  662  919  4  (1) 922 
Other 8  1  —  9  8  —  —  8 
Total $ 2,726  $ 14  $ (24) $ 2,716  $ 3,109  $ 7  $ (37) $ 3,079 

_______________________

(a)    All of our residential mortgage-backed securities have been issued by government-sponsored entities and are collateralized by U.S. mortgages.
(b)    Our asset-backed securities are collateralized by credit card and auto loans.
(c)    At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the estimated fair value of debt securities pledged by the Bank as collateral to the Federal Reserve to secure Federal

Reserve discount window advances was $483 million and $551 million, respectively.

The following table presents the estimated fair values and gross unrealized losses of our available-for-sale debt securities:

In loss position for
Less than 12 months 12 months or more

Gross Gross
Estimated unrealized Estimated unrealized

 ($ in millions) fair value losses fair value losses
At September 30, 2025
U.S. government and federal agency $ 101  $ —  $ —  $ — 
State and municipal 7  —  5  — 
Residential mortgage-backed 41  —  243  (24)
Asset-backed —  —  4  — 
Other —  —  —  — 
Total $ 149  $ —  $ 252  $ (24)

At December 31, 2024
U.S. government and federal agency $ 199  $ —  $ —  $ — 
State and municipal 12  (1) 3  — 
Residential mortgage-backed 5  —  279  (35)
Asset-backed 79  (1) 4  — 
Other —  —  —  — 
Total $ 295  $ (2) $ 286  $ (35)

______________________
(a) Consists of 219 and 224 securities in gross unrealized loss positions at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(a)
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We regularly review debt securities for impairment resulting from credit loss using both qualitative and quantitative criteria, as necessary, based on the
composition of the portfolio at period end. Based on our assessment, no material impairments from credit losses were recognized during the period.

We presently do not intend to sell our debt securities that are in an unrealized loss position and believe that it is not more likely than not that we will be required
to sell these securities before recovery of our amortized cost.

Contractual Maturities of Investments in Available-for-Sale Debt Securities

At September 30, 2025 ($ in millions) Due within 1 year
Due after 1 year
through 5 years

Due after 5 years
through 10 years Due after 10 years Total

U.S. government and federal agency $ 1,050  $ 657  $ —  $ —  $ 1,707 
State and municipal —  6  —  20  26 
Residential mortgage-backed 1  15  95  201  312 
Asset-backed 284  378  —  —  662 
Other —  9  —  —  9 
Total estimated fair value $ 1,335  $ 1,065  $ 95  $ 221  $ 2,716 

Amortized cost $ 1,332  $ 1,055  $ 101  $ 238  $ 2,726 
Weighted average yield 4.5 % 4.3 % 1.7 % 3.2 % 4.2 %

______________________

(a) Weighted average yield is calculated based on the amortized cost of each security. In calculating yield, no adjustment has been made with respect to any tax-exempt
obligations.

All securities are presented above based upon contractual maturity date, except our asset-backed securities which are allocated based upon expected final
payment date. We expect actual maturities to differ from contractual maturities because borrowers have the right to prepay certain obligations.

There were no material realized gains or losses recognized for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024.

Although we generally do not have the intent to sell any specific securities held at September 30, 2025, in the ordinary course of managing our debt securities
portfolio, we may sell securities prior to their maturities for a variety of reasons, including diversification, credit quality, yield, liquidity requirements and funding
obligations.

NOTE 5.    LOAN RECEIVABLES AND ALLOWANCE FOR CREDIT LOSSES

($ in millions) September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Credit cards $ 92,550  $ 96,818 
Consumer installment loans 5,584  5,971 
Commercial credit products 1,961  1,826 
Other 83  106 
Total loan receivables, before allowance for credit losses $ 100,178  $ 104,721 

_______________________

(a) Total loan receivables include $21.0 billion and $21.3 billion of restricted loans of consolidated securitization entities at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024,
respectively. See Note 6. Variable Interest Entities for further information.

(b) At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, loan receivables included deferred income and purchase discounts, net of deferred costs, of $109 million and $212 million,
respectively.

(c) At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, $18.7 billion and $20.7 billion, respectively, of loan receivables were pledged by the Bank as collateral to the Federal
Reserve to secure Federal Reserve discount window advances.

(a)

(a)(b)(c)
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Loan Receivables Held for Sale

During the second quarter of 2025, we entered into an agreement to sell loan receivables associated with one of our retailer program agreements. As a result,
at September 30, 2025, these loan receivables are classified as Loan receivables held for sale on our Condensed Consolidated Statement of Financial
Position. In October 2025, we completed the sale of the loan receivables associated with the program agreement.

Allowance for Credit Losses

 ($ in millions)
Balance at

July 1, 2025
Provision charged

to operations
Gross charge-

offs Recoveries Other

Balance at
September 30,

2025
Credit cards $ 9,906  $ 964  $ (1,553) $ 356  $ 6  $ 9,679 
Consumer installment loans 545  102  (91) 17  —  573 
Commercial credit products 112  34  (29) 3  —  120 
Other 1  1  (1) —  —  1 
Total $ 10,564  $ 1,101  $ (1,674) $ 376  $ 6  $ 10,373 

($ in millions)
Balance at

July 1, 2024
Provision charged

to operations
Gross charge-

offs Recoveries Other

Balance at
September 30,

2024
Credit cards $ 10,255  $ 1,460  $ (1,720) $ 291  $ —  $ 10,286 
Consumer installment loans 602  99  (100) 11  —  612 
Commercial credit products 123  41  (37) 2  —  129 
Other 2  —  —  —  —  2 
Total $ 10,982  $ 1,600  $ (1,857) $ 304  $ —  $ 11,029 

 ($ in millions)
Balance at

January 1, 2025
Provision charged

to operations
Gross charge-

offs Recoveries Other

Balance at
September 30,

2025
Credit cards $ 10,259  $ 3,377  $ (5,049) $ 1,086  $ 6  $ 9,679 
Consumer installment loans 542  275  (293) 49  —  573 
Commercial credit products 127  82  (97) 8  —  120 
Other 1  1  (1) —  —  1 
Total $ 10,929  $ 3,735  $ (5,440) $ 1,143  $ 6  $ 10,373 

($ in millions)
Balance at

January 1, 2024
Provision charged

to operations
Gross charge-

offs Recoveries Other

Balance at
September 30,

2024
Credit cards $ 10,156  $ 4,515  $ (5,313) $ 921  $ 7  $ 10,286 
Consumer installment loans 279  557  (297) 34  39  612 
Commercial credit products 131  101  (109) 6  —  129 
Other 5  (2) (1) —  —  2 
Total $ 10,571  $ 5,171  $ (5,720) $ 961  $ 46  $ 11,029 

_______________________

(a) Excluded from the table above are allowance for credit losses for loan receivables acquired and immediately written off within the period presented.
(b) Provision for credit losses in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Earnings also includes amounts associated with off-balance sheet credit exposures recorded in

Accrued expenses and other liabilities in the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. Such amounts in the three and nine months ended September 30,
2025 include those associated with our commitment to purchase a loan portfolio, which is expected to close in the first half of 2026.

(c) Primarily represents allowance for credit losses for purchased credit deteriorated assets.

The reasonable and supportable forecast period used in our estimate of credit losses at September 30, 2025 was 12 months, consistent with the forecast
period utilized since the adoption of CECL. Beyond the reasonable and supportable forecast period, we revert to historical loss information at the loan
receivables segment level over a 6-month period, and utilize historical loss information thereafter for the remaining life of the portfolio.

(a)

(b)

(b)

(b)

(b) (c)
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Losses on loan receivables, including those which are modified for borrowers experiencing financial difficulty, are estimated and recognized upon origination of
the loan, and updated based on expected credit losses for the life of the loan balance at the period end date. Expected credit loss estimates are developed
using both quantitative models and qualitative adjustments, and incorporates a macroeconomic forecast. The current and forecasted economic conditions at the
balance sheet date are reflected in our current estimate of expected credit losses, which includes consideration of the decrease in delinquent balances as a
percentage of loan receivables compared to the prior year period, as well as expectations of the macroeconomic environment, and the decrease in loan
receivables during the nine months ended September 30, 2025. Our allowance for credit losses decreased to $10.4 billion at September 30, 2025, compared to
$10.9 billion at December 31, 2024, primarily reflecting these conditions. See Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for
additional information on our significant accounting policies related to our allowance for credit losses at September 30, 2025, and Note 2. Basis of Presentation
and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies to our 2024 annual consolidated financial statements within our 2024 Form 10-K, for additional information on
our significant accounting policies related to our allowance for credit losses at December 31, 2024.

Delinquent and Non-accrual Loans

The following table provides information on our delinquent and non-accrual loan receivables:

At September 30, 2025 ($ in millions)
30-89 days
delinquent

90 or more days
delinquent Total past due

90 or more days
delinquent and

accruing Total non-accruing
Credit cards $ 2,105  $ 2,063  $ 4,168  $ 2,063  $ — 
Consumer installment loans 126  30  156  —  30 
Commercial credit products 41  35  76  35  — 
Total delinquent loans $ 2,272  $ 2,128  $ 4,400  $ 2,098  $ 30 

Percentage of total loan receivables 2.3 % 2.1 % 4.4 % 2.1 % — %

At December 31, 2024 ($ in millions)
30-89 days
delinquent

90 or more days
delinquent Total past due

90 or more days
delinquent and

accruing Total non-accruing
Credit cards $ 2,229  $ 2,431  $ 4,660  $ 2,431  $ — 
Consumer installment loans 139  39  178  —  39 
Commercial credit products 45  42  87  42  — 
Total delinquent loans $ 2,413  $ 2,512  $ 4,925  $ 2,473  $ 39 

Percentage of total loan receivables 2.3 % 2.4 % 4.7 % 2.4 % — %

Credit Quality Indicators

Our loan receivables portfolio includes both secured and unsecured loans. Secured loan receivables are largely comprised of consumer installment loans
secured by equipment. Unsecured loan receivables are largely comprised of our open-ended consumer and commercial revolving credit card loans. As part of
our credit risk management activities, on an ongoing basis, we assess overall credit quality by reviewing information related to the performance of a customer’s
account with us, including delinquency information, as well as information from credit bureaus relating to the customer’s broader credit performance. We utilize
VantageScore credit data and scores to assist in our assessment of credit quality. VantageScore credit data and scores are obtained at origination of the
account and are refreshed, at a minimum quarterly, but could be as often as weekly, to assist in predicting customer behavior. We categorize these credit
scores into the following three credit score categories: (i) 651 or higher, which are considered the strongest credits; (ii) 591 to 650, considered moderate credit
risk; and (iii) 590 or less, which are considered weaker credits. There are certain customer accounts, including for our commercial credit products, for which a
VantageScore credit score may not be available where we use alternative sources to assess their credit quality and predict behavior. The following table
provides the most recent VantageScore credit scores, or equivalent, available for our revolving credit card and commercial credit product customers at
September 30, 2025, December 31, 2024 and September 30, 2024, respectively, as a percentage of each class of loan receivables. The table below excludes
0.4%, 0.3% and 0.3% of our total loan receivables balance for our credit cards and commercial credit products at September 30, 2025, December 31, 2024 and
September 30, 2024, respectively, which represents those customer accounts for which a VantageScore credit score, or equivalent, is not available.
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September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024 September 30, 2024
651 or 591 to 590 or 651 or 591 to 590 or 651 or 591 to 590 or
higher 650  less higher 650  less higher 650  less

Credit cards 73 % 19 % 8 % 73 % 19 % 8 % 72 % 19 % 9 %
Commercial credit products 83 % 11 % 6 % 83 % 7 % 10 % 83 % 7 % 10 %

Consumer Installment Loans

Delinquency trends are the primary credit quality indicator for our consumer installment loans, which we use to monitor credit quality and risk within the
portfolio. The tables below include information on our consumer installment loans by origination year.

Consumer Installment Loans by Origination Year
By origination year

At September 30, 2025 ($ in millions) 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 Prior Total
Amortized cost basis $ 1,559  $ 1,707  $ 1,221  $ 725  $ 276  $ 96  $ 5,584 
30-89 days delinquent $ 23  $ 35  $ 32  $ 23  $ 9  $ 4  $ 126 
90 or more days delinquent $ 4  $ 9  $ 8  $ 6  $ 2  $ 1  $ 30 

By origination year
At December 31, 2024 ($ in millions) 2024 2023 2022 2021 2020 Prior Total
Amortized cost basis $ 2,581  $ 1,761  $ 1,005  $ 424  $ 166  $ 34  $ 5,971 
30-89 days delinquent $ 47  $ 44  $ 30  $ 12  $ 5  $ 1  $ 139 
90 or more days delinquent $ 13  $ 13  $ 9  $ 3  $ 1  $ —  $ 39 

Gross Charge-offs for Consumer Installment Loans by Origination Year
By origination year

For the nine months ended ($ in millions) 2025 2024 2023 2022 2021 Prior Total
September 30, 2025 $ 10  $ 101  $ 91  $ 62  $ 21  $ 8  $ 293 
September 30, 2024 $ —  $ 23  $ 135  $ 87  $ 35  $ 17  $ 297 

Loan Modifications to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty

The following tables provides information on our loan modifications made to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty during the periods presented, which do
not include loans that are classified as loan receivables held for sale:

Three months ended September 30 2025 2024

($ in millions) Amount
% of Total Class of
Loan Receivables Amount

% of Total Class of
Loan Receivables

Long-term modifications
Credit cards $ 406  0.4 % $ 442  0.5 %
Consumer installment loans —  — % —  — %
Commercial credit products 2  0.1 % 3  0.2 %

Short-term modifications
Credit cards 203  0.2 % 231  0.2 %
Consumer installment loans —  — % —  — %
Commercial credit products 1  — % —  — %

Total $ 612  0.6 % $ 676  0.7 %
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Nine months ended September 30 2025 2024

($ in millions) Amount
% of Total Class of
Loan Receivables Amount

% of Total Class of
Loan Receivables

Long-term modifications
Credit cards $ 1,228  1.3 % $ 1,322  1.4 %
Consumer installment loans —  — % —  — %
Commercial credit products 7  0.4 % 7  0.4 %

Short-term modifications
Credit cards 664  0.7 % 704  0.7 %
Consumer installment loans —  — % —  — %
Commercial credit products 2  — % 1  — %

Total $ 1,901  1.9 % $ 2,034  2.0 %

_______________________

(a) Represents balance at enrollment date. Long-term and short-term loan modifications made to borrowers for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 had amortized cost
balances at September 30, 2025 of $1.0 billion and $124 million, respectively.

Financial Effects of Loan Modifications to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty

As part of our loan modifications to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty, we may provide multiple concessions to minimize our economic loss and improve
long-term loan performance and collectability. For long-term modifications made in the three and nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, the
financial effect of these modifications reduced the weighted-average interest rates by 97% for all periods presented. For short-term modifications made in the
three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, unpaid balances of $12 million and $15 million, respectively, were forgiven related to borrowers who
successfully exited the program. For short-term modifications made in the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, unpaid balances of $211 million
and $216 million, respectively, were forgiven related to borrowers who successfully exited the program. Additionally, beginning in late 2024, for borrowers that
newly enroll in our short-term loan modification programs, we no longer charge interest and penalty fees during the term of the program and also typically waive
accrued and unpaid interest and fees at the time of enrollment.

Performance of Loans Modified to Borrowers Experiencing Financial Difficulty

The following tables provide information on the performance of loans modified to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty which have been modified within the
previous 12 months from the applicable balance sheet date and remained in a modification program at September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively:

Amortized cost basis

At September 30, 2025 ($ in millions) Current
30-89 days
delinquent

90 or more days
delinquent Total past due

Long-term modifications
Credit cards $ 972  $ 160  $ 111  $ 271 
Consumer installment loans —  —  —  — 
Commercial credit products 5  1  1  2 

Short-term modifications
Credit cards 56  30  38  68 
Consumer installment loans —  —  —  — 
Commercial credit products —  —  —  — 

Total delinquent modified loans $ 1,033  $ 191  $ 150  $ 341 
Percentage of total loan receivables 1.0 % 0.2 % 0.1 % 0.3 %

(a)

(a)
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Amortized cost basis

At September 30, 2024 ($ in millions) Current
30-89 days
delinquent

90 or more days
delinquent Total past due

Long-term modifications
Credit cards $ 1,002  $ 178  $ 132  $ 310 
Consumer installment loans —  —  —  — 
Commercial credit products 3  1  1  2 

Short-term modifications
Credit cards 72  38  39  77 
Consumer installment loans —  —  —  — 
Commercial credit products —  —  —  — 

Total delinquent modified loans $ 1,077  $ 217  $ 172  $ 389 

Percentage of total loan receivables 1.1 % 0.2 % 0.2 % 0.4 %

___________________

(a)    Once a loan has been modified, it only returns to current status if the borrower pays the total minimum payment due or if the loan is re-aged after three consecutive monthly
program payments are received post the modification date.

Payment Defaults

The following tables present the type, number and amount of loans to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty that enrolled in a long-term modification
program within the previous 12 months from the applicable balance sheet date, and experienced a payment default and charged-off during the period
presented:

Three months ended September 30 2025 2024
($ in millions, accounts in thousands) Accounts defaulted Loans defaulted Accounts defaulted Loans defaulted
Credit cards 34  $ 97  43  $ 116 
Consumer installment loans —  —  —  — 
Commercial credit products —  1  —  1 
Total 34  $ 98  43  $ 117 

Nine months ended September 30 2025 2024
($ in millions, accounts in thousands) Accounts defaulted Loans defaulted Accounts defaulted Loans defaulted
Credit cards 75  $ 216  96  $ 259 
Consumer installment loans —  —  —  — 
Commercial credit products —  2  1  2 
Total 75  $ 218  97  $ 261 

Of the loans modified to borrowers experiencing financial difficulty that enrolled in a short-term modification program within the previous 12 months from the
applicable balance sheet date, 64% and 60% had fully completed all required payments and successfully exited the program during the nine months ended
September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

Unfunded Lending Commitments

We manage the potential risk in credit commitments by limiting the total amount of credit, both by individual customer and in total, by monitoring the size and
maturity of our portfolios and by applying a consistent underwriting approach for all of our credit products. Unused credit card lines available to our customers
totaled approximately $444 billion and $433 billion at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively. While these amounts represented the total
available unused credit card lines, we have not experienced and do not anticipate that all of our customers will access their entire available line at any given
point in time.

(a)
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Interest Income by Product

The following table provides additional information about our interest and fees on loans, including merchant discounts, from our loan receivables, including held
for sale:

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Credit cards $ 5,255  $ 5,236  $ 15,386  $ 15,345 
Consumer installment loans 208  238  626  630 
Commercial credit products 46  46  134  134 
Other 1  2  4  7 
Total $ 5,510  $ 5,522  $ 16,150  $ 16,116 

_______________________

(a) Interest income on credit cards that was reversed related to accrued interest receivables written off was $541 million and $551 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $1.8 billion and $1.7 billion for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

(b) Deferred merchant discounts to be recognized in interest income at both September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, were $1.8 billion, which are included in Accrued
expenses and other liabilities in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

(a)

(b)
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NOTE 6.    VARIABLE INTEREST ENTITIES

We use VIEs to securitize loan receivables and arrange public and private asset-backed financing in the ordinary course of business through Synchrony Card
Issuance Trust, as well as private asset-backed financing through Synchrony Credit Card Master Note Trust and Synchrony Sales Finance Master Trust.
Investors in these entities only have recourse to the assets owned by the entity and not to our general credit. We do not have implicit support arrangements
with any VIE and we did not provide non-contractual support for previously transferred loan receivables to any of these VIEs in the three and nine months
ended September 30, 2025 and 2024. Our VIEs are able to accept new loan receivables and arrange new asset-backed financings, consistent with the
requirements and limitations on such activities placed on the VIE by existing investors. Once an account has been designated to a VIE, the contractual
arrangements we have require all existing and future loan receivables originated under such account to be transferred to the VIE. The amount of loan
receivables held by our VIEs in excess of the minimum amount required under the asset-backed financing arrangements with investors may be removed by us
under removal of accounts provisions. All loan receivables held by a VIE are subject to claims of third-party investors.

The loan receivables in these entities have risks and characteristics similar to our other loan receivables and were underwritten to the same standard.
Accordingly, the performance of these assets has been similar to our other comparable loan receivables, and the blended performance of the pools of
receivables in these entities reflects the eligibility criteria that we apply to determine which receivables are selected for transfer. Contractually, the cash flows
from these loan receivables must first be used to pay third-party debt holders, as well as other expenses of the entity. Excess cash flows, if any, are available to
us. The creditors of these entities have no claim on our other assets.

The table below summarizes the assets and liabilities of our consolidated securitization VIEs described above:

($ in millions) September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Assets    
Loan receivables, net $ 19,182    $ 19,439 
Other assets 44    44 
Total $ 19,226    $ 19,483 
   
Liabilities  
Borrowings $ 7,666    $ 7,842 
Other liabilities 26    27 
Total $ 7,692    $ 7,869 

_______________________

(a)    Includes $1.8 billion and $1.9 billion of related allowance for credit losses resulting in gross restricted loan receivables of $21.0 billion and $21.3 billion at September 30,
2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively.

(b)    Includes $40 million of segregated funds held by the VIEs at both September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, which are classified as restricted cash and equivalents and
included as a component of Other assets in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

The balances presented above are net of intercompany balances and transactions that are eliminated in our condensed consolidated financial statements.

We provide servicing for all of our consolidated VIEs. Collections are required to be placed into segregated accounts owned by each VIE in amounts that meet
contractually specified minimum levels. These segregated funds are invested in cash and cash equivalents and are restricted as to their use, principally to pay
maturing principal and interest on debt and the related servicing fees. Collections above these minimum levels are remitted to us on a daily basis.

Income (principally, interest and fees on loans) earned by our consolidated VIEs was $1.1 billion and $1.2 billion for the three months ended September 30,
2025 and 2024, respectively. Related expenses consisted primarily of provision for credit losses of $140 million and $331 million for the three months ended
September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and interest expense of $105 million and $108 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024,
respectively.

(a)

(b)
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Income (principally, interest and fees on loans) earned by our consolidated VIEs was $3.2 billion for both the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and
2024. Related expenses consisted primarily of provision for credit losses of $602 million and $753 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and
2024, respectively, and interest expense of $313 million and $323 million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively.

These amounts do not include intercompany transactions, principally fees and interest, which are eliminated in our condensed consolidated financial
statements.

Non-consolidated VIEs

As part of our community reinvestment initiatives, we invest in funds that invest in affordable housing properties and receive affordable housing tax credits for
these investments. We account for these investments using the proportional amortization method, where the costs of the investment are amortized in proportion
to the income tax credits and other income tax benefits received. These investments are included in Other assets within our Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position totaled $914 million and $776 million at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively, and represent our total
exposure for these entities.

For the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, provision for income taxes included amortization expense of $35 million and $24 million,
respectively, and tax credits and other tax benefits of $45 million and $30 million, respectively, associated with investments in affordable housing properties. For
the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, provision for income taxes included amortization expense of $108 million and $71 million, respectively,
and tax credits and other tax benefits of $133 million and $86 million, respectively, associated with investments in affordable housing properties.

Our other investments in non-consolidated VIEs, totaled $290 million and $274 million at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively, and are
included in Other assets within our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position. At September 30, 2025, the Company also had investment
commitments of $193 million related to these investments.

NOTE 7.    INTANGIBLE ASSETS

September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

($ in millions)
Gross carrying

amount
Accumulated
amortization Net

Gross carrying
amount

Accumulated
amortization Net

Capitalized software $ 2,668  $ (1,823) $ 845  $ 2,361  $ (1,569) $ 792 
Other 204  (140) 64  195  (133) 62 
Total $ 2,872  $ (1,963) $ 909  $ 2,556  $ (1,702) $ 854 

During the nine months ended September 30, 2025, we recorded additions to intangible assets subject to amortization of $319 million, primarily related to
capitalized software expenditures.

Amortization expense was $90 million and $83 million for the three months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and $263 million and $243
million for the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, respectively, and is included as a component of Other expense in our Condensed
Consolidated Statements of Earnings.
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NOTE 8.    DEPOSITS

Deposits
($ in millions) September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Interest-bearing deposits:

Money market and other demand deposits $ 2,758  $ 2,264 
Savings 30,112  28,605 
Certificates of deposit

Direct 40,462  41,055 
Brokered 3,596  5,891 

Brokered sweep accounts 2,585  3,849 
Total interest-bearing deposits 79,513  81,664 

Total non-interest-bearing deposits 373  398 
Total deposits $ 79,886  $ 82,062 

Certificates of Deposit

At September 30, 2025, our certificates of deposit maturing for the remainder of 2025 and over the next four years and thereafter were as follows:

($ in millions) 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Thereafter
Certificates of deposit $ 3,139  $ 31,058  $ 4,540  $ 2,237  $ 1,182  $ 1,902 

At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, direct certificates of deposit of $11.5 billion and $11.2 billion, respectively, were of denominations at or
exceeding applicable FDIC insurance limits, which are generally $250,000 per depositor for each account ownership category. These amounts include partially
insured certificates of deposit. At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the portion of these direct certificates of deposit estimated to be uninsured was
$3.9 billion and $3.7 billion, respectively. Brokered certificates of deposit are assumed to be individual deposit balances within applicable FDIC insurance limits.

Brokered Sweep Deposits

Our broker network deposit sweeps are procured through a program arranger who channels account deposits to us. Unless extended, the contracts associated
with these broker network deposit sweeps will terminate between 2025 and 2029.
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NOTE 9.    BORROWINGS
September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024

($ in millions) Maturity date Interest Rate

Weighted
average interest

rate
Outstanding
Amount

Outstanding
Amount

Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities:
Fixed securitized borrowings 2026 - 2028 4.49% - 5.74% 5.11 % $ 4,741  $ 4,917 
Floating securitized borrowings 2026 - 2028 4.84% - 5.22% 4.99 % 2,925  2,925 
Total borrowings of consolidated securitization entities 5.06 % 7,666  7,842 

Senior unsecured notes:
Synchrony Financial senior unsecured notes:

Fixed senior unsecured notes 2026 - 2031 2.88% - 5.15% 3.90 % 2,891  4,637 
Fixed to floating senior unsecured notes 2029 - 2036 5.02% - 6.00% 5.62 % 2,534  745 

Synchrony Bank senior unsecured notes:
Fixed senior unsecured notes 2027 5.63% 5.63 % 598  1,497 
Total senior unsecured notes 4.79 % 6,023  6,879 

Subordinated unsecured notes:
Synchrony Financial subordinated unsecured notes:

Fixed subordinated unsecured notes 2033 7.25% 7.25 % 742  741 
Total senior and subordinated unsecured notes 5.06 % 6,765  7,620 

Total borrowings $ 14,431  $ 15,462 

___________________
(a) Includes unamortized debt premiums, discounts and issuance costs.
(b) The Company may redeem certain borrowings prior to their original contractual maturity dates in accordance with the optional redemption provision specified in the

respective instruments.

Debt Maturities

The following table summarizes the maturities of the principal amount of our borrowings of consolidated securitization entities and senior and subordinated
unsecured notes for the remainder of 2025 and over the next four years and thereafter:

($ in millions) 2025 2026 2027 2028 2029 Thereafter
Borrowings $ —  $ 3,400  $ 4,200  $ 2,175  $ 1,150  $ 3,550 

Senior Unsecured Notes

The following table summarizes the issuances of Synchrony Financial fixed to floating rate senior unsecured notes during the nine months ended
September 30, 2025:

($ in millions):
Issuance Date Principal Amount Fixed Interest Rate Interest Rate Reset Date Floating Rate Spread Maturity
March 2025 $ 800  5.450% March 7, 2030 168 bps March 2031
July 2025 $ 500  5.019% July 29, 2028 139.5 bps July 2029
July 2025 $ 500  6.000% July 29, 2035 207 bps July 2036

___________________
(a) Floating rate applicable at interest rate reset date through maturity, based on compounded Secured Overnight Financing Rate plus floating rate spread noted above.

(a)(b) (a)(b)

(a)
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Additional Sources of Liquidity

We have undrawn committed and uncommitted capacity under our credit facilities from private lenders under our securitization programs, subject to customary
borrowing conditions, and also have access to the Federal Reserve discount window. At both September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, we had:

• an aggregate of $2.6 billion of undrawn capacity under our securitization financings, of which $2.1 billion was committed and $450 million was
uncommitted, and

• an aggregate of $10.0 billion and $11.5 billion, respectively, of available borrowing capacity through the Federal Reserve discount window based on the
amount and type of assets pledged.

In July 2025, our $500 million unsecured revolving credit facility with private lenders matured.
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NOTE 10.    FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS

For a description of how we estimate fair value, see Note 2. Basis of Presentation and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in our 2024 annual
consolidated financial statements within our 2024 Form 10-K. The following tables present our assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis.

Recurring Fair Value Measurements
At September 30, 2025 ($ in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Debt securities

U.S. government and federal agency $ —  $ 1,707  $ —  $ 1,707 
State and municipal —  —  26  26 
Residential mortgage-backed —  312  —  312 
Asset-backed —  662  —  662 
Other —  —  9  9 

Other 14  —  3  17 
Total $ 14  $ 2,681  $ 38  $ 2,733 

Liabilities
Other $ —  $ —  $ 1  $ 1 
Total $ —  $ —  $ 1  $ 1 

At December 31, 2024 ($ in millions) Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
Assets
Debt securities

U.S. government and federal agency $ —  $ 1,844  $ —  $ 1,844 
State and municipal —  —  16  16 
Residential mortgage-backed —  289  —  289 
Asset-backed —  922  —  922 
Other —  —  8  8 

Other 14  —  6  20 
Total $ 14  $ 3,055  $ 30  $ 3,099 

Liabilities
Other $ —  $ —  $ 11  $ 11 
Total $ —  $ —  $ 11  $ 11 

_______________________

(a)    For the nine months ended September 30, 2025 and 2024, there were no fair value measurements transferred between levels and changes in our Level 3 assets and
liabilities were not material.

(b)    Other is primarily comprised of equity investments measured at fair value, which are included in Other assets in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial
Position, as well as certain financial assets for which we have elected the fair value option which are included in Loan receivables in our Condensed Consolidated
Statements of Financial Position.

(c)    Other includes certain financial liabilities for which we have elected the fair value option. These liabilities are included in Accrued expenses and other liabilities in our
Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

Level 3 Fair Value Measurements

Our Level 3 recurring fair value measurements primarily relate to state and municipal and corporate debt instruments, which are valued using non-binding
broker quotes or other third-party sources, and financial assets and liabilities for which we have elected the fair value option. See Note 2. Basis of Presentation
and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies in our 2024 annual consolidated financial statements within our 2024 Form 10-K for a description of our
process to evaluate third-party pricing servicers. Our state and municipal debt securities are classified as available-for-sale with changes in fair value included
in Accumulated other comprehensive income.

(a)

(b)

(c)

(a)

(b)

(c)
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Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities Carried at Other Than Fair Value

Carrying Corresponding fair value amount
At September 30, 2025 ($ in millions) value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial assets for which carrying values equal or
approximate fair value:

Cash and equivalents $ 16,245  $ 16,245  $ 16,245  $ —  $ — 
Other assets $ 42  $ 42  $ 42  $ —  $ — 

Financial assets carried at other than fair value:
Loan receivables, net $ 89,994  $ 102,996  $ —  $ —  $ 102,996 

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at other than fair value:

Deposits $ 79,886  $ 80,043  $ —  $ 80,043  $ — 
Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities $ 7,666  $ 7,732  $ —  $ 4,811  $ 2,921 
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes $ 6,765  $ 6,832  $ —  $ 6,832  $ — 

Carrying Corresponding fair value amount
At December 31, 2024 ($ in millions) value Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
Financial Assets
Financial assets for which carrying values equal or
approximate fair value:

Cash and equivalents $ 14,711  $ 14,711  $ 14,711  $ —  $ — 
Other assets $ 44  $ 44  $ 44  $ —  $ — 

Financial assets carried at other than fair value:
Loan receivables, net $ 93,785  $ 106,632  $ —  $ —  $ 106,632 

Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities carried at other than fair value:

Deposits $ 82,062  $ 82,256  $ —  $ 82,256  $ — 
Borrowings of consolidated securitization entities $ 7,842  $ 7,871  $ —  $ 4,950  $ 2,921 
Senior and subordinated unsecured notes $ 7,620  $ 7,502  $ —  $ 7,502  $ — 

_______________________

(a)    For cash and equivalents and restricted cash and equivalents, carrying value approximates fair value due to the liquid nature and short maturity of these instruments.
(b)    This balance relates to restricted cash and equivalents, which is included in Other assets. Excludes accrued interest receivables of $42 million and $25 million at

September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively, for which carrying value approximates fair value.
(c)    Includes loan receivables held for sale and excludes financial assets for which we have elected the fair value option. Under certain retail partner program agreements, the

expected sales proceeds in the event of a sale of their credit card portfolio may be limited to the amounts owed by our customers, which may be less than the fair value
indicated above.

(d) Excludes accrued interest payable of $220 million and $339 million, included in Accrued expenses and other liabilities, in our Condensed Consolidated Statements of
Financial Position at September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, respectively, for which carrying values approximate fair value.

(e) Includes demand deposits with no defined maturity.

(a)

(a)(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(a)

(a)(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

61



Equity Securities Without Readily Determinable Fair Values

Three months ended Nine months ended
At or for the periods ended September 30
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Carrying value $ 268  $ 270  $ 268  $ 270 

Upward adjustments $ —  $ —  $ —  $ — 
Downward adjustments $ (8) $ (5) $ (8) $ (7)

_______________________

(a)    Carrying value reflects cumulative purchases and sales in addition to upward and downward carrying value changes, and at December 31, 2024 was $270 million.
(b)    Between January 1, 2018 and September 30, 2025, cumulative upward and downward carrying value adjustments for equity securities held at September 30, 2025 were

$201 million and $(17) million, respectively.

NOTE 11.    REGULATORY AND CAPITAL ADEQUACY

As a savings and loan holding company and a financial holding company, we are subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the Federal Reserve
Board and subject to the capital requirements as prescribed by Basel III capital rules and the requirements of the Dodd-Frank Wall Street Reform and
Consumer Protection Act. The Bank is a federally chartered savings association. As such, the Bank is subject to regulation, supervision and examination by the
Office of the Comptroller of the Currency of the U.S. Treasury (the “OCC”), which is its primary regulator, and by the Consumer Financial Protection Bureau
(“CFPB”). In addition, the Bank, as an insured depository institution, is supervised by the FDIC.

Failure to meet minimum capital requirements can initiate certain mandatory and, possibly, additional discretionary actions by regulators that, if undertaken,
could limit our business activities and have a material adverse effect on our consolidated financial statements. Under capital adequacy guidelines, we must
meet specific capital guidelines that involve quantitative measures of our assets, liabilities and certain off-balance-sheet items as calculated under regulatory
accounting practices. The capital amounts and classifications are also subject to qualitative judgments by the regulators about components, risk weightings and
other factors.

Quantitative measures established by regulation to ensure capital adequacy require us and the Bank to maintain minimum amounts and ratios (set forth in the
tables below) of Total, Tier 1 and common equity Tier 1 capital (as defined in the regulations) to risk-weighted assets (as defined), and of Tier 1 capital to
average assets (as defined).

For Synchrony Financial to be a well-capitalized savings and loan holding company, the Bank must be well-capitalized and Synchrony Financial must not be
subject to any written agreement, order, capital directive, or prompt corrective action directive issued by the Federal Reserve Board to meet and maintain a
specific capital level for any capital measure.

The Company elected to adopt the option provided by the interim final rule issued by joint federal bank regulatory agencies, which largely delayed the effects of
CECL on its regulatory capital. The effects were phased-in over a three-year period through 2024 and were fully phased-in beginning in the first quarter of 2025.
Under the interim final rule, the amount of adjustments to regulatory capital deferred until the phase-in period included both the initial impact of our adoption of
CECL at January 1, 2020 and 25% of subsequent changes in our allowance for credit losses during the two-year period ended December 31, 2021, collectively
the “CECL regulatory capital transition adjustment”. At December 31, 2024, 25% of the CECL regulatory capital transition adjustment was deferred in our
regulatory capital amounts and ratios.

At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, Synchrony Financial met all applicable requirements to be deemed well-capitalized pursuant to Federal
Reserve Board regulations. At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, the Bank also met all applicable requirements to be deemed well-capitalized
pursuant to OCC regulations and for purposes of the Federal Deposit Insurance Act. There are no conditions or events subsequent to September 30, 2025 that
management believes have changed the Company's or the Bank’s capital category.

(a)

(b)

(b)
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The actual capital amounts, ratios and the applicable required minimums of the Company and the Bank are as follows:

Synchrony Financial

At September 30, 2025 ($ in millions) Actual
Minimum for capital
adequacy purposes

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total risk-based capital $ 17,260  16.9 % $ 8,151  8.0 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital $ 15,132  14.9 % $ 6,113  6.0 %
Tier 1 leverage $ 15,132  13.0 % $ 4,650  4.0 %
Common equity Tier 1 Capital $ 13,910  13.7 % $ 4,585  4.5 %

At December 31, 2024 ($ in millions) Actual
Minimum for capital
adequacy purposes

Amount Ratio Amount Ratio
Total risk-based capital $ 17,407  16.5 % $ 8,433  8.0 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital $ 15,239  14.5 % $ 6,325  6.0 %
Tier 1 leverage $ 15,239  12.9 % $ 4,717  4.0 %
Common equity Tier 1 Capital $ 14,017  13.3 % $ 4,744  4.5 %

Synchrony Bank

At September 30, 2025 ($ in millions) Actual
Minimum for capital
adequacy purposes

Minimum to be well-capitalized
under prompt corrective action

provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total risk-based capital $ 16,007  16.5 % $ 7,780  8.0 % $ 9,726  10.0 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital $ 13,931  14.3 % $ 5,835  6.0 % $ 7,780  8.0 %
Tier 1 leverage $ 13,931  12.6 % $ 4,432  4.0 % $ 5,540  5.0 %
Common equity Tier 1 capital $ 13,931  14.3 % $ 4,376  4.5 % $ 6,322  6.5 %

At December 31, 2024 ($ in millions) Actual
Minimum for capital
adequacy purposes

Minimum to be well-capitalized
under prompt corrective action

provisions
Amount Ratio Amount Ratio Amount Ratio

Total risk-based capital $ 15,916  15.8 % $ 8,037  8.0 % $ 10,046  10.0 %
Tier 1 risk-based capital $ 13,805  13.7 % $ 6,027  6.0 % $ 8,037  8.0 %
Tier 1 leverage $ 13,805  12.4 % $ 4,466  4.0 % $ 5,582  5.0 %
Common equity Tier 1 capital $ 13,805  13.7 % $ 4,521  4.5 % $ 6,530  6.5 %

_______________________

(a) Capital ratios are calculated based on the Basel III Standardized Approach rules. Capital amounts and ratios at December 31, 2024 in the above tables reflect the applicable
CECL regulatory capital transition adjustment.

(b) At September 30, 2025 and December 31, 2024, Synchrony Financial and the Bank also must maintain a capital conservation buffer of common equity Tier 1 capital in
excess of minimum risk-based capital ratios by at least 2.5 percentage points to avoid limits on capital distributions and certain discretionary bonus payments to executive
officers and similar employees.

The Bank may pay dividends on its stock, with consent or non-objection from the OCC and the Federal Reserve Board, among other things, if its regulatory
capital would not thereby be reduced below the applicable regulatory capital requirements.

(a) (b)

(a) (b)

(a) (b)

(a) (b)
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NOTE 12.    EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing earnings available to common stockholders by the weighted average number of common shares outstanding
for the period. Diluted earnings per common share reflects the assumed conversion of all dilutive securities, which are calculated using the treasury stock
method.

The following table presents the calculation of basic and diluted earnings per common share:

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ and shares in millions, except per share data) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Net earnings $ 1,077  $ 789  $ 2,801  $ 2,725 
Preferred stock dividends (20) (21) (62) (51)
Net earnings available to common stockholders $ 1,057  $ 768  $ 2,739  $ 2,674 

Weighted average common shares outstanding, basic 365.9  392.3  375.7  398.7 
Effect of dilutive securities 4.0  4.2  3.7  3.7 
Weighted average common shares outstanding, dilutive 369.9  396.5  $ 379.4  402.4 

Earnings per basic common share $ 2.89  $ 1.96  $ 7.29  $ 6.71 

Earnings per diluted common share $ 2.86  $ 1.94  $ 7.22  $ 6.65 

We have issued stock-based awards under the Synchrony Financial 2024 Long-Term Incentive Plan, along with prior incentive plans. Awards that were
considered anti-dilutive and therefore were excluded from the computation of diluted earnings per common share were less than 1 million shares for all periods
presented.

NOTE 13.    INCOME TAXES

Unrecognized Tax Benefits
($ in millions) September 30, 2025 December 31, 2024
Unrecognized tax benefits, excluding related interest expense and penalties $ 236    $ 207 

Portion that, if recognized, would reduce tax expense and effective tax rate $ 186  $ 163 

____________________

(a) Interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits were not material for all periods presented.
(b) Comprised of federal unrecognized tax benefits and state and local unrecognized tax benefits net of the effects of associated U.S. federal income taxes. Excludes amounts

attributable to any related valuation allowances resulting from associated increases in deferred tax assets.

We establish a liability that represents the difference between a tax position taken (or expected to be taken) on an income tax return and the amount of taxes
recognized in our financial statements. The liability associated with the unrecognized tax benefits is adjusted periodically when new information becomes
available. The amount of unrecognized tax benefits that is reasonably possible to be resolved in the next twelve months is expected to be $33 million, of which
$26 million, if recognized, would reduce the Company's tax expense and effective tax rate.

In the current year, the Company executed a Memorandum of Understanding with the IRS to participate voluntarily in the IRS Compliance Assurance Process
(“CAP”) program for the 2025 tax year, and thus the tax year is under IRS review. The IRS is also examining our 2024 tax year, and we expect the review will
be completed in the current year. Additionally, we are under examination in various states going back to 2014.

We believe that there are no issues or claims that are likely to significantly impact our results of operations, financial position or cash flows. We further believe
that we have made adequate provision for all income tax uncertainties that could result from such examinations.

(a)

(b)
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NOTE 14.    SEGMENT REPORTING

We conduct our operations through a single business segment, which derives interest and fee income earned on our credit products we offer to our customers.

There have not been any changes to the basis of segmentation or the measurement of performance as compared to the 2024 Form 10-K.

The following table presents segment information for the periods presented herein:

Three months ended September 30, Nine months ended September 30,
($ in millions) 2025 2024 2025 2024
Interest and fees on loans $ 5,510  $ 5,522  $ 16,150  $ 16,116 
Interest on cash and debt securities 221  263  717  819 

Total interest income 5,731  5,785  16,867  16,935 
Total interest expense 1,011  1,176  3,162  3,516 
Net interest income 4,720  4,609  13,705  13,419 

Retailer share arrangements (1,024) (914) (2,911) (2,488)

Reserve build (release) (152) 44  (514) 413 
Net charge-offs 1,298  1,553  4,297  4,759 
Provision for credit losses 1,146  1,597  3,783  5,172 

Other income:
Other income 127  119  394  324 
Gain on sale of business —  —  —  1,069 

Total other income 127  119  394  1,393 

Other expense:
Employee costs 503  464  1,518  1,394 
Professional fees 240  231  693  687 
Marketing and business development 120  123  363  377 
Information processing 226  203  660  596 
Fraud-related operational losses 43  47  117  146 
Other segment items 116  121  385  372 

Total other expense 1,248  1,189  3,736  3,572 

Provision for income taxes 352  239  868  855 

Net earnings $ 1,077  $ 789  $ 2,801  $ 2,725 

_____________
(a) Includes $1.1 billion gain on sale recognized in the nine months ended September 30, 2024 related to the sale of Pets Best. See Note 3. Acquisitions and Dispositions to our

2024 annual consolidated financial statements in our 2024 Form 10-K for additional information.
(b) Represents the total amount of other expenses included in net earnings, including postage and various other corporate overhead items such as facilities costs and telephone

charges.

Our segment assets represent our total assets as presented on the Condensed Consolidated Statements of Financial Position.

(a)

(b)
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NOTE 15.    LEGAL PROCEEDINGS AND REGULATORY MATTERS

In the normal course of business, from time to time, we have been named as a defendant in various legal proceedings, including arbitrations, class actions and
other litigation, arising in connection with our business activities. Certain of the legal actions include claims for substantial compensatory and/or punitive
damages, or claims for indeterminate amounts of damages. We are also involved, from time to time, in reviews, investigations and proceedings (both formal
and informal) by governmental agencies regarding our business (collectively, “regulatory matters”), which could subject us to significant fines, penalties,
obligations to change our business practices or other requirements resulting in increased expenses, diminished income and damage to our reputation. We
contest liability and/or the amount of damages as appropriate in each pending matter. In accordance with applicable accounting guidance, we establish an
accrued liability for legal and regulatory matters when those matters present loss contingencies which are both probable and reasonably estimable.

Legal proceedings and regulatory matters are subject to many uncertain factors that generally cannot be predicted with assurance, and we may be exposed to
losses in excess of any amounts accrued.

For some matters, we are able to determine that an estimated loss, while not probable, is reasonably possible. For other matters, including those that have not
yet progressed through discovery and/or where important factual information and legal issues are unresolved, we are unable to make such an estimate. We
currently estimate that the reasonably possible losses for legal proceedings and regulatory matters, whether in excess of a related accrued liability or where
there is no accrued liability, and for which we are able to estimate a possible loss, are immaterial. This represents management’s estimate of possible loss with
respect to these matters and is based on currently available information. This estimate of possible loss does not represent our potential maximum loss
exposure. The legal proceedings and regulatory matters underlying the estimate will change from time to time and actual results may vary significantly from
current estimates.

Our estimate of reasonably possible losses involves significant judgment, given the varying stages of the proceedings, the existence of numerous yet to be
resolved issues, the breadth of the claims (often spanning multiple years), unspecified damages and/or the novelty of the legal issues presented. Based on our
current knowledge, we do not believe that we are a party to any pending legal proceeding or regulatory matters that would have a material adverse effect on
our condensed consolidated financial condition or liquidity. However, in light of the uncertainties involved in such matters, the ultimate outcome of a particular
matter could be material to our operating results for a particular period depending on, among other factors, the size of the loss or liability imposed and the level
of our earnings for that period, and could adversely affect our business and reputation.

66



ITEM 3. QUANTITATIVE AND QUALITATIVE DISCLOSURES ABOUT MARKET RISK

Market risk refers to the risk that a change in the level of one or more market prices, rates, indices, correlations or other market factors will result in losses for a
position or portfolio. We are exposed to market risk primarily from changes in interest rates.

We borrow money from a variety of depositors and institutions in order to provide loans to our customers. Changes in market interest rates cause our net
interest income to increase or decrease, as some of our assets and liabilities carry interest rates that fluctuate with market benchmarks. The interest rate
benchmark for our floating rate assets is generally the prime rate, and the interest rate benchmark for our floating rate liabilities is generally either the Secured
Overnight Financing Rate ("SOFR"), U.S. Treasury bills, or the federal funds rate. The prime rate and the SOFR, U.S. Treasury bills or federal funds rate could
reset at different times or could diverge, leading to mismatches in the interest rates on our floating rate assets and floating rate liabilities.

The following table presents the approximate net interest income impacts forecasted over the next twelve months from an immediate and parallel change in
interest rates affecting all interest rate sensitive assets and liabilities at September 30, 2025.

Basis Point Change At September 30, 2025
($ in millions)

-100 basis points $ (171)
+100 basis points $ 93 

For a more detailed discussion of our exposure to market risk, refer to “Management's Discussion and Analysis—Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about
Market Risk” in our 2024 Form 10-K.

ITEM 4. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES

Under the direction of our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer, we evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosure controls and procedures (as
defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e) under the Exchange Act), and based on such evaluation, our Chief Executive Officer and Chief Financial Officer
concluded that our disclosure controls and procedures were effective as of September 30, 2025.

No change in internal control over financial reporting occurred during the fiscal quarter ended September 30, 2025 that has materially affected, or is reasonably
likely to materially affect, our internal control over financial reporting.
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PART II. OTHER INFORMATION

ITEM 1. LEGAL PROCEEDINGS

For a description of legal proceedings, see Note 15. Legal Proceedings and Regulatory Matters to our condensed consolidated financial statements in Part 1,
Item 1 of this Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q.

ITEM 1A. RISK FACTORS

There have been no material changes to the risk factors included in our 2024 Form 10-K under the heading “Risk Factors Relating to Our Business” and “Risk
Factors Relating to Regulation”.

ITEM 2. UNREGISTERED SALES OF EQUITY SECURITIES AND USE OF PROCEEDS

The table below sets forth information regarding purchases of our common stock primarily related to our share repurchase program that were made by us or on
our behalf during the three months ended September 30, 2025.

($ in millions, except per share data)
Total Number of Shares

Purchased
Average Price Paid Per

Share

Total Number of Shares
Purchased as

Part of Publicly
Announced Programs

Maximum Dollar Value of
Shares That May Yet Be

Purchased Under the
Programs

July 1 - 31, 2025 2,026,930  $ 71.60  1,979,912  $ 1,858.1 
August 1 - 31, 2025 8,863,853  70.30  8,860,194  1,235.3 
September 1 - 30, 2025 1,288,319  75.15  1,283,939  2,138.8 
Total 12,179,102  $ 71.03  12,124,045  $ 2,138.8 

_______________________

(a) Includes 47,018 shares, 3,659 shares and 4,380 shares withheld in July, August and September, respectively, to offset tax withholding obligations that occur upon the
delivery of outstanding shares underlying performance stock awards, restricted stock awards or upon the exercise of stock options.

(b) Amounts exclude commission costs.
(c) In April 2025, the Company announced that the Board of Directors approved a new share repurchase program of up to $2.5 billion through June 30, 2026. In September

2025, the Board of Directors approved an incremental share repurchase authorization of up to $1.0 billion, through June 30, 2026.

ITEM 3. DEFAULTS UPON SENIOR SECURITIES

None.

ITEM 4. MINE SAFETY DISCLOSURES

Not applicable.

(a) (b) (b)(c)
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ITEM 5. OTHER INFORMATION

Rule 10b5-1 Trading Plans

During the three months ended September 30, 2025, certain of our directors and executive officers adopted or terminated trading plans intended to satisfy the
affirmative defense conditions of Rule 10b5-1(c). Information regarding these Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangements is presented in the table below. No other
directors or officers of the Company adopted, modified or terminated a "Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement" or "non-Rule 10b5-1 trading arrangement," as each
such term is defined in item 408(a) of Regulation S-K, during the three months ended September 30, 2025.

Name Title
Action Taken (Adoption or

Termination Date) Duration

Aggregate Number
of Securities to be

Sold or Gifted
Arthur W. Coviello Director Termination (7/25/2025) 2/17/2025 - 3/31/2026 18,000 
Arthur W. Coviello Director Adoption (7/25/2025) 7/25/2025 - 8/31/2026 26,400 

Curtis Howse
Executive Vice President, CEO - Home &
Auto Adoption (7/24/2025) 7/24/2025 - 6/30/2026 86,161 

Jonathan S. Mothner
Executive Vice President, Chief Risk and
Legal Officer Adoption (7/28/2025) 7/28/2025 - 8/14/2026 32,000 

    ______________________

(1) Pursuant to the terms of each plan and subject to compliance with Rule 10b5-1, each plan may terminate at an earlier date under certain circumstances, including if all
trades are executed or all orders related to the trades under the relevant plan expire.

(2) Mr. Coviello terminated this plan on July 25, 2025 prior to adopting a new plan on the same date. No shares were sold under this plan prior to its termination.
(3) Included a gift of 6,000 shares.
(4) Includes a gift of 6,400 shares.

(1) (2)

(2) (3)

(4)
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ITEM 6. EXHIBITS

EXHIBIT INDEX

Exhibit Number Description
3.1 Second Amended and Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Synchrony Financial (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Form

8-K filed by Synchrony Financial on June 13, 2024 (No. 001-36560))
3.2 Amended and Restated Bylaws of Synchrony Financial (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of Form 8-K filed by Synchrony

Financial on November 1, 2016 (No. 001-36560))
4.1 Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of July 29, 2025, between Synchrony Financial and The Bank of New York Mellon, as

Trustee (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Form 8-K filed by Synchrony Financial on July 29, 2025 (No. 001-36560))
4.2 Form of 5.019% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2029 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Form 8-K filed by

Synchrony Financial on July 29, 2025 (No. 001-36560))
4.3 Form of 6.000% Fixed-to-Floating Rate Senior Notes due 2036 (incorporated by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of Form 8-K filed by

Synchrony Financial on July 29, 2025 (No. 001-36560))
31(a)* Certification Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Amended
31(b)* Certification Pursuant to Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Amended
32* Certification Pursuant to 18 U.S.C. Section 1350
101.INS XBRL Instance Document - the instance document does not appear in the Interactive Data File because its XBRL tags are

embedded within the Inline XBRL document
101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document
101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document
101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document
101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document
101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document
104 The cover page from the Company's Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for the quarter ended September 30, 2025, formatted in Inline

XBRL (included as Exhibit 101)

______________________ 

* Filed electronically herewith.
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Signatures

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned
thereunto duly authorized.

Synchrony Financial
(Registrant)

October 22, 2025 /s/ Brian J. Wenzel Sr.
Date Brian J. Wenzel Sr.

Executive Vice President and Chief Financial Officer
(Duly Authorized Officer and Principal Financial
Officer)
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Exhibit 31(a)
Certification Pursuant to

Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Amended

I, Brian D. Doubles, certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Synchrony Financial;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: October 22, 2025

/s/ Brian D. Doubles
Brian D. Doubles
Chief Executive Officer



Exhibit 31(b)
Certification Pursuant to

Rules 13a-14(a) or 15d-14(a) Under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as Amended

I, Brian J. Wenzel Sr., certify that:

1. I have reviewed this quarterly report on Form 10-Q of Synchrony Financial;

2. Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain any untrue statement of a material fact or omit to state a material fact necessary to make the
statements made, in light of the circumstances under which such statements were made, not misleading with respect to the period covered by this report;

3. Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, and other financial information included in this report, fairly present in all material respects the financial
condition, results of operations and cash flows of the registrant as of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

4. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I are responsible for establishing and maintaining disclosure controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange
Act Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)) for the registrant and have:

a. Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caused such disclosure controls and procedures to be designed under our supervision, to
ensure that material information relating to the registrant, including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known to us by others within those
entities, particularly during the period in which this report is being prepared;

b. Designed such internal control over financial reporting, or caused such internal control over financial reporting to be designed under our
supervision, to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

c. Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disclosure controls and procedures and presented in this report our conclusions about the
effectiveness of the disclosure controls and procedures, as of the end of the period covered by this report based on such evaluation; and

d. Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting that occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscal
quarter (the registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the case of an annual report) that has materially affected, or is reasonably likely to materially affect,
the registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

5. The registrant’s other certifying officer and I have disclosed, based on our most recent evaluation of internal control over financial reporting, to the
registrant’s auditors and the audit committee of the registrant’s board of directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

a. All significant deficiencies and material weaknesses in the design or operation of internal control over financial reporting which are reasonably likely
to adversely affect the registrant’s ability to record, process, summarize and report financial information; and

b. Any fraud, whether or not material, that involves management or other employees who have a significant role in the registrant’s internal control over
financial reporting.

Date: October 22, 2025

/s/ Brian J. Wenzel Sr.
Brian J. Wenzel Sr.
Chief Financial Officer



Exhibit 32
Certification Pursuant to
18 U.S.C. Section 1350

In connection with the Quarterly Report of Synchrony Financial (the “registrant”) on Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2025, as filed with the
Securities and Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the “report”), we, Brian D. Doubles, Chief Executive Officer, and Brian J. Wenzel Sr., Chief Financial
Officer, of the registrant, certify, pursuant to 18 U.S.C. § 1350, that to our knowledge:

1. The report fully complies with the requirements of section 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended; and

2. The information contained in the report fairly presents, in all material respects, the financial condition and results of operations of the registrant.

Date: October 22, 2025

/s/ Brian D. Doubles
Brian D. Doubles
Chief Executive Officer

/s/ Brian J. Wenzel Sr.
Brian J. Wenzel Sr.
Chief Financial Officer


